990 l OMB No, 1545.0047
Form

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2012

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947?3)(1 of the Internal Revenue Code
(except black {ung benefit trust or private foundation)

ﬂ?ﬁ;ﬁ?ﬁgﬁ;’,ﬁg‘;"sﬁf‘;‘: & *» The organization may have fo use a copy of this retum to satisfy state reporting requirements.
A Forthe 2012 calendar year, or tax year beginning 9/30 , 2012, and ending 8/28 , 2013
B Gheck if applicable: c D Employer Identification Number
| jAddresschange  |Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501
Name change Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) E Telephone number
" P.0, Box 404, 489 State Street
Initial retw ’ -
[l retm - ngor, ME 04402-0404 (207) 973-7064
L Terminated
] Amended return G Gross receipts $ 1333976851.
|| Application pending F Name and address of principal officer: Derrick Hollings Ha) ts this a group relurs for affiliates? Hvas ﬁnn
H(b liatos i
Same As C Above TRy o — L B L
| Tacoxemptstatus  [E[501c)®) | [501(e) ( )< (insertno) | [4947Ga)(1)er | |57
J Website: » www.emnc, org H(c) Group exemption number ™ 5247
K Form of organization: l§| Corporation [_l Thust |_J Association I_I Qther™ I L Year of Formation: 1892 ( M State of legal domicile: ME
: | Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: Eastern Maine Medical Center strives
¢|  to provide exceptional primary and specialty healthcare with a passionate pursuit _
€ of excellence in patient safety, clinical quality, and service. Our mission is to
£ care_for patients, families, communities, and one another., __ ________________
Z| 2 Check this box > D if the organization disconiinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
S| 3 Number of voling members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a). .. ...ttt 3 17
‘: 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b). ...................... 4 10
21 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2012 (Part V, line 2a) . ... 5 4,193
= Total number of volunteers {estimate if Nnecessary). ... . ... oot i i 6 400
:‘;’ 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), line 12, ... ... . i 7a 62,918,
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, N 34 . .. ... o i e 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o 8 Contrihutions and grants Part VI line TRY ... . i 7,281,171, 7,987,413,
2| 2 Program service revenue (Part VIl line 2g). ... o 1232940927.11,263,756,589.
g 10 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), fines 3, 4, and 7d) ... ............. ... ... 1,530,402, 19,069,311.
[ 11 Cther revenue {Part VI, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c,and 11} ................ 11,792, 864. 6,762,393,
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column {A), line 12)... ... 1253545364.11,297,575,706,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part [X, column (&), lines 1-3}............ P
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A}, lined). .........................
o | 18 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), tines 5-10} ... ... 327,970,731, 349,518,092,
§ 16 a Professional fundraising fees (Part X, column (A), line 11e)
é- k Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »
17 Other expenses (Part [X, column (A), fines 11a-11d, 11f24e) ... ...................... 862,986,866, 896,772,231,
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part [X, column (A), line 25).............. 1190957597.(1,246,2920,323,
.| 19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12................... 0, 62,587,767, 51,285,383,
. § Beginning of Current Year End of Year
§;’; 20 Totalassets (Part X, line 16) ...t 573,340,985, 786,477,975,
by 21 Total liabilities (Part X, N 26) .. ...\ u i 261,582,289, 414,315,047,
23l 22 Net assets or fund balances. Sublract line 21 from liNe 20............................ 311,758,696.| 372,162,928,

Signature Block

Under penaltias of perjury, | daclare that | have examined this return, incfuding accempanying schedules and statements, and te the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and
complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officar) is based on all informaticn of which preparer has any knowladge.

) Signatire of off e ya IDt ﬁ%g;’!ﬁ“
Sign ignature of officer - -
Here p Derrick Hollings(i,:ﬁ/%/%/ 7 Treasurer

Type or print name and titfe.

PTIN

PrintfType praparet's name Preparer's signature Date Check

“|Self-Prepared

Pai d self-employed
P]’epal‘el‘ Firm's name
Use Only |sims address

Finn's EIN »  $EHE

Phone no, &

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions). Yes N X No
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. TEEAQ113L 12A18M12 Forrm 990 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) FEastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 2
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments ™~

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part 1. .. ... .. i
1 Brlefly describe the organizatien's mission: ' ‘

See Schedule O

Form 990 0r 990-EZ2. . ..ottt e e [] ves No
if "Yes,' describe these new services on Schedule O,
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?. . ... D Yes No

If 'Yes,' describe these changes on Schedule O,

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three fargest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to
others, the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) Expenses 5 999,999,999, including grants of § ) (Revenue $ )
See Schedule O

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ 48,237,121, including grants of $ ) Revenue 8 )
Medicaid shortfalls (at cost) 80,568 persons served

4¢ (Code: Y {Expenses § 30,854,212, including grants of 5 } Revenue 5 )
Medicare shortfalls (at cost) 128,784 persons served

4.d Other program services. {Describe in Schedute O.) See Schedule O
Expenses 8 88,904,474, including grants of _ $ ) Revenus §  1269109394.)
4 e Total program service expenses » 1,167,995,806.
BAA TEEAGIO2L 08/08/12 Form 990 (2012)




Form 980 (2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 3
: Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No

1 s the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) {other than a private foundation)? If 'Yes,' compiete

SohedUle A . e e 1 X
2 s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?. ..................... 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behaif of or in opposition to candidates

for public office? If Yes, ' complefe Schedule C, Part I .. . . i 3 X
4 Section 501(c)X3) organizaticns Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election

in effect during the tax year? If ‘Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part 1L, . . . . 4 X
5 Is the crganization a section 501(c)(4), 50!(0)(52é or 501{c)(5) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 Jf 'Yes, ' complete Schedule C, Fart iil..... .. 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or an%r similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right

}g p{?wde advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes, ' complete Schedule D, X

7 O 6

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the

environment, histeric land areas or historic structures? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule D, Part It .. ... ... ... ... ... ...... 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical freasures, or other similar assets? Jf 'Yes,”

complate Schedtle D, Part . . .. e e e 8 X
9 Did the erganization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custedian

for amounds not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management credit repair, or debt negotiation

services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedtle D, Parf IV . .. . o e 9 X

10 Did the or?anization, directly or through a related organization, hold assels in temporarily restricted endowments,

permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule D, Part V. ... ... ... ... ..ot

11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VI, VIII, 1X,

or X as applicable.

a Did the erganization report an amount for land, buildings and equipment in Part X, line 10? if 'Yes,” complete Schedule

L T R Mal X
b Did the organization repoirt an amount for investments — other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule D, Part VII. ... . e i ieiin s 1hb X
c Did the organization repott an amount for investments — program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% ot more of its total
assets reported in Part X, Hine 167 If *Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VIIL .. ... ... e X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported
in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes,' complefe Schedule D, Parl IX . .. e e 1Mdf X
e Did the organization report an amount for other ligbilitties in Part X, line 257 7 'Yes, ' complete Schedule D, Part X..... .. 11e] X
f Did the organization's separate or consclidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's ltability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X. .. .. 1"Mf| X
12a Did the or%anization obtain separate, independent audited financial staternents for the tax year? If "Yes, ' complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and XI. . e 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes, 'and
if the organization answered 'No' fo line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xlt is optional. ................. 12| X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170()(1{AXINT If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule E........................ 13 X
14 a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ... ... ... ... ... .. .. 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investmenis valued
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes, 'complete Schedule F, FParts Fand IV ... e 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part |X, cofumn (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any organization
or entity located outside the United States? If Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts ifand IV. . ... ... ... ... .. .. 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part 1X, column (Ag/, line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to
individuals located outside the United States? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule F, Parts Htand IV .. ... .. . ..o . oioin, 16 X
17 Did the crganization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for profassional fundraising services on Part X,
column (A}, lines 6 and 11e? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedufe G, Part | (see insfruclions). .. ....... . ... . ... it 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VI,
lines 1c and 8a? If 'Yes,  complete Schedule G, Part 1 .. e 18 X
19 Did the or%anization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line Sa? If 'Yes,”
complate Behedule G, Fart . .. ... . e 19 X
20 a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If ‘Yes,' complete Schedule H . ... .................... U X
b if "Yes' to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to thisreturn? .. ........ ... ., 20p] X

BAA

TEEAQGIO3L 12M13/t12

Form 990 (2012)




Form 9890 (2012)  Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) __01-0211501 Page 4

1 Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

21 Did the organization reg(ort more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to governments and organizations in the
United States on Part 1X, column (&), line 12 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule |, Parfs Tand Il . ........ ... ...... ... ...

22 Did the organizaticn report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States on Part
I1X, column (A), line 27 Jf "Yes,’ complele Schedule |, Parfs Tand Il ... ... . . . . .

23 Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part Vi, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the crganization's current
and formej officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If 'Yes, ' comypiete
SOl . e e e

24 a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of mere than $100,000 as of
the last day of the year, and that was issued after December 31, 20027 Ir 'Yes, ' answer lines 24b through 24d and
compilele Schedule K. I NO, GO B0 I 20 . e

25 a Section 501(c)3) and 501(c)4} organizations, Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction with a
disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes, 'complete Schedule L, Part | ... .. . i i e

b Is the organizaticn aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
ihat the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ27 If 'Yes, ' complete
SRt L, At [ e e e

26 Was ajoan to or by a current or former officer, director, frustee, key employee, highest compensated emfloyee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization's tax year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Partll. . ... ..

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or famiiy member
of any of these persons? If 'Yes,” complefe Schedule L, Part Il ... ..

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If *Yes, ' complete Schedule L, Part IV ... ...............

b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes, ' complete
SOREUiE L, Part IV . it e e e s

¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee {or a fam&y member thereof) was an
officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule L, Part IV. . ... ... . 0o i iiiiivnins
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule M. . .............
36 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? If 'Yes, ' complete Schadule M . . . e e s
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part . ... . ..

32 Didthe or?\?nization sell, exchange, dispose of, or fransfer mare than 25% of its net assets? Jf 'Yes,” complete
Schedule N, Part I . . e e e e e e

33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule R, Fart ... ... e

34 Waas &ﬁlorg?nization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? if 'Yes, ' complete Schedule R, Parts i, llf, IV,
ANV, G L e e e e

b If "Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any Joayment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. .............ccvviiivnins

36 Section 501(c)5 organizations. Did the or??anization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
organization? if 'Yes, ' complete Schedula R, Parl V, ine 2. . . .

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is
freated as a parinership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,  complele Schedule R, Part VL. ... ..................

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. . ... i i e s

Yes | No
21 X
22 X
23 X
24a| X
24h X
Z4c X
24d X
25a X
25b X
26 X

282 | X
28p| X
28| X
2 | X
| X
3 X
32 X
33 X
34 | X
35a| X
Bb| X
36 X
37 X
8| X

BAA

TEEAO104L 08/08112

Form 890 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) FEastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) _ 01-021150

1 Page 5

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable. . ............. 1a

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ......... ... h

¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
{gambling) wWinniNgs 10 Prize WinNerS T . . . it i e e e e

2 a Enter the number of employses reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return...... 2a 4,193

b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? ..............
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions)

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . .......................

b If "Yes' has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If ‘No,' provide an explanation in Schedule O. ... ... ... . cooiiiiin..

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a banik account, securities account, or other financial accoun®? ..........

b If "Yes,' enter the name of the forsign country: »

See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts,

6 a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?. .. ......... ... ... ... . ... ..

b If 'Yes,' did the or%]anization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were
MOt X Bt T L e e

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a anment in excess of $75 made parity as a contribution and partly for goods and
services provided 10 Bhe Ay . L. e e e e

c 'E__)id thgz%gfnization sefl, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to file
orm e e e e e e e e e e e e e

¢ I the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899
2= £ [0 o

h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
e T 1

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 508(a)3) supporting organizations, Did the
supperting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess business
holdings al any time during the Year? ... . i e e e e

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

10 Section 501{c)7) organizations, Enter:

79

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part Vill, line 12.............. ... ... 10a

h Gross receipts, included on Form 290, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of ¢lub facilities. . .. .. 10b
11 Section 501(c)12) crganizations. Enter:

a Gross income from members or shareholders. . ........ooo o 1la

b Gross income from other sources {Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources

against amounts due ar received from them.). ... ... .o e, Mb :

12 a Section 4947(a)1) non . exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in fieu of Form 10417 . ..., .. ....... 12a

b If “Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. ..... .. [ 12 b|

13 Section 501(c)29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed fo issue qualified health plans inmore thanone state? . ... ol
Note. See the insiructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedute O.

b Enter the amount of reserves the arganization is required to maintain by the states in
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans. ............ ... 13hb

¢ Enter the amountofreserves onhand .......... . ... . i e 13¢

b If 'Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If ‘No,’ provide an explanation in Schedule G .............. ..

14a
14b

BAA TEEAQIDEL  08/08/12

Form 980 (2012)




Form 890 (2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 6

Governance, Management and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for

a ‘No' response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in
Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part VI . ... .. i i e

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1 a Enter the number of voling members of the governing body at the end of the tax vear. ... . .. Ta 17
If there are material differences in voting rights among members B
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive committee or similar committes, explain in Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voling members included in line 1a, above, who are independent .. .. .. Th 10

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employeg have a familyrelationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee or key employee?. .. .. ge.e.e. ggheraﬁ/le %O ..............................................

3 Did the organization delegate conirol over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors or irustees, or key employees to a management company or otherperson? ............cocvveviinn. 3 X
4 Did the erganization make any significant changes to its governing documents
since the prior Form 990 was filed? .. ... .... Sl SCh . 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? .............. 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockhalders? .. ... See Schedule. 0., ... . 6 | X
7 a Did the organization have members stockgolﬁers of other persons who had the power tc elect or appoint one or more
members of the governing body? .. See . ochedule. Q. . 7al X
h Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by} members,
stockholders, or other persons other than the goVEMING BOAYZ. . ... oLttt ettt crecneaiansd Seg.Sch. 0| 7b| X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by [
the following:
A The goOVeImINg DoAY T . .. et e e e e e e 8al] X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?. ... .. ... i i i s 8h| X
9 Is there any officer, director or frustes, or key employee listed in Part Vil, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's malling address? If 'Yes, ' provide the names and addresses in Schedule O.............. ..o viui it 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes [ No
10 a Did the aorganization have local chaplers, branches, or affiliates?. .. ... ... .. . i i e 10a X
b If Yes," did ihe organization have written policies and procedures governing the activitios of such chaplers, affiliates, and branches to ensure their
operations are consistent with the organization's eXamt PUIDOSESY. . .. . i e e e e e 10b
11 & Has the arganization provided a complete copy of this Forr 990 to all members of its governing body before filing theform?. . ......... ..ot it Ma; X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization fo review this Form 990.  See Schedule O
12 a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest polley? If No,"gotoline 13. ... ... ... . . . . i it 12a| X
b Were officers, directors or trustees, and key employeas required to disclose annuaily interests that could give rise
e3R8 - 12b| X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consiste ﬂ{lm niior aBd enforce compliance with the policy? If *Yes,’ describe in
Schedule O how this is done. .. ... See .Schedule O 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistieblower policy?. . .. . . o e 13 X
14 Did the erganization have a written document retention and desiruction policy?. .. ... . ... . 14 X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEOQ, Executive Director, or top management official .. See. Schedule. Q...................... 15a
b Other officers of key employees of the organization. .. .See. .Schedule .O......... ..o i i 15b] X
If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O. (See instructions.) :
16 a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

faxable entily during the Year?. . . . i e e e !

b If "Yes,' did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax iaw, and taken steps to safequard the
organization's exempt status with respect 10 SUCH armangeman Sl . . . ... i it i e e

Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed » ME

18 Section 6104 requires an orgahization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)(3)s only) available for public
inspection. Indicate how you make these available. Check all that apply.

Own website Another's website Upon request |:| Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whather (and if so, how) the organization makes ils governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to
the public during the tax year, See Schedule 0O

20 State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization:

BAA TEEAOI06. 08/08/12 Form 990 (2012)




Page 7

Form 990 (2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501

Compensation of Officers, Direciors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part VIL .. ... oo
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

® | ist all of the or% nization's current officers, directors, frustees {whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation, Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was pald,

® | ist all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employse.'

® | ist the organization's five current highest compensated employzes (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who recejved reporfable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
orgartization and any related organizations.

® List all of the organization's former officers, key emplofees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportabie compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization's former directors or trustees ihat received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, mere than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual frustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated
employees; and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or frustee.

<)
B Position (do not check mere than D
Namme and Title A\ferzga Oﬂ?flﬁgg'r gi?%ﬁi%é’:ﬁg}g}n Re)(aor)tgble RegoErzable EsE'E&)aied
hours per compensation from compensation from amount of other
weelk él)ist — T the organization related organizations cempensation
any hours | 8 3, § ‘5% 5 Zl & (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1699-MISC) from the
for related % = ] Il I T T § arganization
e |88 5% 3582 Rl
below |2 B & Z|®8
dotted g = %l &
fine) Z g @ 3
{0 ﬁ‘ %
_{W_EE comp_is for admin sv| 0 _
not brd respons 0 X 0. 0. 0.
_@ Ashley Robertson, MD__ | 50 _
Board Member 0 X 421,436, 0. 23,129,
_® John Miller ~_______ | 0.5
Board Member 0 X 0. 0. 0.
_® Mary M. Hood, President| 20 _
Ex-0fficio 30 X X 0. 844,254, 248,039,
_® Deborah Carey Johnson, | 350
Ex-0fficio 0 X X 521,048. 0. 472,548,
_(® Michael J. McInnis _ _ | __: 1 _
Chairman (pt vyr) 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
_¢) Sally Arata | 0.5
Board Member 0 X 0. 0. 0.
_® Mary Cathcart ______ | _0.5_
Board Member 0 X 0. Q. 0.
_® Deanna Dorsey ______ _|_590_
Board Member 0 X 346,523, 0. 28,718,
09 _Jennifer Brooker | 0.5
Board Member 0 X 0. 0. 0.
a1 _Gary Eckmann __ ____ | 0.5
Board Member 0 X 0. 0. 0.
(2 Liane E. M. Judd____ _ | 1
Chairman{pt vr) 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
03 David L. Levy, MD _ __ | 0.5
Board Member 0 X 0. 0. 0.
(4)_John M. Long, §r., MD_ [ 0.5
Board Member 0 X 0. 0. 0.

BAA
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l_:o m__g9_0 (2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

01-0211501

Page 8

{Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (con?)

(B ©
(A) Averags | (do not chnfc?(s:-trln%?e'Man one (D) E) )
Neme and i o | et § drecornston | comeht o | counebitle, | Eelaied
ey R B Q[E EIF| GMRED | CGEENRST | R
for | &I § 2|lz 28z and related
related I R=-Al é_ -3 organizations
ons o2 |2 3
G | BB %] 3
Fne) *l o g
(5 Donald Hagstrom ____ __ _ _1
Vice Chairman 0 | X X 0. 0. 0.
{18)_5Senator Kevin L. Raye ____ __ | 0.5
Board Member 0 | X 0. 0. 0.
O07_lyad Sabbagh, MD _50
Board Member 0 [ X 241,443, 0. 42,152,
1®_John A. Vickery, Sr. ___ 0.5
Board Member 0 [ X 0. 0. 0.
09_Julie Long, MD _90
Board Member 01X 515,793. 0. 25,894,
@0 Scott Solman _ 11 0.5
Board Member 0 | X 0. 0. 0.
@) _James A, Raczek, MD _50
VP/CO0 & CMO 0 X 478, 005, 0. 49,124,
22 G, Greqory Howat, Esq. ____ _ _50.
VP/HR 0 X 258,604, 0. 48,004.
9 _Helen Q. McKinnon, RN _ _ _50
VP/SUPPORT SVC 0 X 249,001, 0. 48,034,
24 Jill McDonald _ ____ _30
VP/COMM & MKT 0 X 184,527, 0. 30,790,
{25 Jodi Galli, RN _30
CNO 0 X 66,836, 0. 4,747,
TBSUBOtAl ... e > 13,283,216, 844,254.| 1,021,179,
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VI, SeclionA ........................ > |5,207,695.] 1,597, 760. 408, 045.
dTotal (add lines Thand 16}, ... .........oviir e, > 18,490,911.] 2,442,014.] 1,429,224,

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation

from the organization ™ 3588

3 Didthe organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee

on line 1a

If Yes,' complete Schedule J for such individual. ...

4 For any individual listed on line ta, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 if Yes' compiete Schedule J for

SUCH IOIVIaUaL . e e

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual

for services rendered to the organization? If 'Yes, ' complete Schedule J for such person

Section B. Independent Contractors

T Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent cortractors that received more than $10C,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year,

) . (B) ) ©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
NURSE ANESTHESIA OF MAINF, 141 N MAIN ST STE 205 BREWER, ME 04412 COVERAGFE, SERVICES 9,645,759,
CERNER CORPORATION PO BOX 412702 KANSAS CITY, MO 64141-2702 SOFTWARE SUPPORT 5,086,021.
FENOBSCOT RESPIRATORY 417 STATE STREET SUITE 400 BANGOR, ME 04401-66 |RESPIRATORY THERAPY 3,888,472,
DAHL CHASE DIAGNOSITC SERVICES 417 State St Suite 441 Bangor, ME 044 |Diagnostic Services 3,122,820,
WEATHERBY LOCUMS INC PO Box 972633 DALLAS, TX 753%7-2633 Staffing Services 3,227,026
2 Total number of independent contractots (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 in compensation from the organization ™ 77

BAA

TEEADI08L 01/2413
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Form 990

Department of the Treasury
iniernal Revenue Service

Continuation Sheet for Form 990

OME No. 1545-0047

2012

Name of the Qrganization

F stern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

Employler Identification number

01-0211501

Continuation: Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated

Employees
(A) (B) {C) (D) (E) "
MName and Title Position (check al that apply) Reportable Reporiable Estimated

SR TTTRIQIERES| Temlr | chin | o
ey | TE|E|815 |22 W-211089-MISC) (W-211009-MISC) from the
et [BE | 5% || 522 P
U:SIHaFEieZCL ) g g = %‘ & & organizations
v | §18[T] 3
dotted finey | © ] B ;rﬂ?

Glenn Martin, VP/ Gen Coun | 14 _

Secretary 36 X 0. 298,749. 43,740.

Derrick Hollings = ___ _ | _0_

EMHS Treasurer 50 X 0. 301,549, 15,022,

Elmer Doucette, VP/CFO__ _ | 50

Treasurer 0 X 275,267, 0. 40,493,

Robert A, Clough, MD __ _ | _40_

Surgeon 0 X 1,021,889, 0. 36, 265.

Wayne R, Waterman, MD _ | 40 |

Neuro Surgeon 0 X 738, 357. 0. 32,874,

Peter P Huang | _40_

General Surgeon 0 X 571,939, 0. 42,663,

Michael A. Johnson, MD | 40 _

Retinal Surgeon 0 X 1,539,690, 0. 36,278.

John D. Klemperer, MD __ _ | _A40_

Physician 0 X 1,036,050, 0. 39,742,

Scott Oxley ____ | _0_

Former Treasurer 50 X 0. 278,914, 41,241,

Michael Donahue | -0

Former VP/Phy Practice 50 X 24,503, 265,134. 33,063,

Daniel B. Coffey ______ | 0 _

Former Treasurer 50 X 0. 453,414, 46,664,

TEEA4301L 0972412

Form 990 Cont 2012




Form

990 (012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 9
I| Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPart VI ... ... oo D
S (A) B8 < (D)

Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections

_____ revenue 512, 5613, or 514
T1a
b
1c
1d[ 4,226,459.
e Government grants (contributions). . . . e 948, 776.
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not included above, . . 1f] 2,812,178,
g Noncash coniributions included in Ins 1a-11 8 49,811,

h Total. Add lines 1a-16..................

CONTRIBUTIONS, GIETS, GRANTS:
PROGRAM SERVICE REVENUE “AND GTHER SIMILAR AMOUNTS)

Business Code

2a Patient Care Service  |621990 999959999.1 999999999,
b Patient Care Services [621990 259473613.] 253466443, 7,170,
¢ Cafeteria 722210 3,162,002, 2,379.1 3,159,623,
d Hotel/Lodging 721110 672,194, 672,194.
e Healthcare Education 611710 448,781, 448,781.

f Alf other program service revenue. . . .

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f, ... ..............

1263756589

OTHER REVENVE

8 [Investment income (including dividends, i
other similar amounts). ................

4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . .»

nterest and

1,432,255,

1,432,255,

5 Royalties......... ... i i >
(i) Reat (i) Personal
Ga Grossrents.......... 83, 456. 12,000.
b Less: rental expenses 5,964,
¢ Rental income or (loss). . .. 77,492, 12,000,
d Netrental income or {loss). ...l >
7 a Gross amount from sales of () Securities i Other
assels other than inventory . | 36207492.| 17824745,
b Less; cost or other basis
and sales expenses. . ... .. 33562082.|2,833,099.
c Gain or (losg)........ 2,.645,410.| 14991646,

dNetgainor (loss)......................

8a Gross income from fundraising events
{not including. §
of contributions reported on line 1c¢).

SeePartlV,line 18 ................ a

b Less: directexpenses. .............. b

¢ Net income or {loss) from fundraising events..........

9 a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePartV,line 19, ............... a

b Less: direct expenses............... b

c Net income or {foss) from gaming activiti

10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances .................... a

b Less: cost of goods sold

¢ Net income or {loss) from sales of inventory...........

Miscellanecus Revenue Business Coda
1a Meaningful Use ___ __ 621990 4,617,129, 4,617,129,
b 340B Pharmacy Benefits [621890 1,332,0896. 1,332,096.
¢ Clinical Engineering _  [541300 627,098, 609,526, 17,572,
d Allotherrevenue. .. ................ WKS 96,578 72 . 781 23.797

6,672,901

1297575706,

1265214659,

62,918.] 24,310,716,

BAA

TEEAQIDIL 1211712

Form 990 (2012)




980 (2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 10
Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check If Schedule O contains a response o any questioninthis Part 1X.. . ... ... . i i e
De not include amounts reported on lines &b (A) ® © )
b, 8b. b, and 10b of P {.’ Vil - Total expensos Program service Management and Fundraising
, 8B, 9D, ar . expenses general expenses exXpenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments e
and organizations in the United States. See
Part VMV line 2% ...
2 Grants and other assistance fo individuals in
the United States. See Part IV, line 22. ... ..
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part [V, lines 15 and 16..
4 Benefits paid to or for members............
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
frustees, and key employees. .. ............ 4,372,116, 2,540,835, 1,831,281. 0.
¢ Compensation not included above, to
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(NH(1)) and persons described
in section 4958(@EB). . ...l 0. 0. 0. 0,
Other satarles and wages.................. 274,056,658, 265,313,394, 8,743,264,
Pension plan accruals and contributions
{include section 401(k) and section 403(b)
employer contributions). ................... 13,845, 838. 13,266,283, 579,555,
9 Other employee benefits. .................. 40,767, 347. 36,502,348. 4,264,999,
10 Payrolltaxes........coooviiiiiii 16,476,133, 15,529,783, 946, 344.
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
aManagement................ .. i
blegal.. ... 486,700, 172,613, 314,087,
cAccounting. .. ... ... 153, 770. 153,770.
dlobbying. ... i
e Professionat fundraising services, See Park IV, line 17. . .
f Investment management fees.............. 330,287. 17,919, 312,368,
g Other, (if line 11g amt exceads 10% of line 25, ¢ol-
urmn (A) ami, list line 11g expenses on Sch Q). .. ... .. 89,294,494, 44,788,500, 44,505,994,
12 Advertising and promotion................. 1,804,628, 1,610,064, 194,564.
13 Office eXpenses .....ooviee e iinrvnninnnn 15,815,105. 11,602,721. 4,212,384,
14 Information technology .. .................. 7,377,618. 4,618,211. 2,759,407,
15 Rovalties............. ..ot
16 Cocupancy.........ooooviii i 10,371,154, 7,914,143, 2,457,011,
17 Travel. . ..o e 751, 481. 673,158, 78,323,
18 Payments of fravel or entertainment
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials . .........c. o
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings. ... 1,405,414, 1,327,006. 78,408.
20 Inderest.. ... 2,893,339, 2,739,587. 153,752,
21 Paymentstoaffiliates .....................
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. .. . 24,804,514, 19,634,093, 5,170,421,
23 NSUFBNCE . . . vt e e i 3,177,350, 3.043,901. 133,449,
24 Ofher expenses. ltemize expenses not T

25
26

covered above (List miscellaneous expenses
in line 24e. If line 24 amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e

expenses on Schedule Q). ...............

a Contractual Allowances

Total functional expenses. Add lines | through 2e. . . .

Joint costs. Complete this line onty i
the organization reported in column (8)
joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.

Check here » [ | if foliowing

573, 600,337.]

573,600,337,

86,066,008. 85,920,302, 145,706.

29,223,699, 29,223,689,

26,491, 770. 26,491,770,

22,724,563, 21,465,133, 1,252,430,
1246290323.]1,167,9585,806. 78,294,517, 0.

BAA
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Form 890 2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 11
; | Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questionin thisPart X............ e e o D
A (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash — non-interest-bearing. .. ... ... 16,070.| 1 17,170,
2 Savings and temporary cash investimends. ... ............... ... L 38,015,413, 2 24,388,794,
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net. ... ... . oo i 111,820.] 3 346,265,
& Accounts receivable, Net. ... ... e 0,623,481.| 4 97,389,936,
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
frustees, key emploelees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Partll of Schedule L. .. ... o e
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons Sas defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
gmplqygars and sponsoring organizations of section 501(0)%9? voluntary emfloyees' :
eneficiary crganizations (see instructions). Complete Part il of Schedule L. ... .. 6
21 7 Notos and loans receivable, Net . ... .. i e 1,320,817.1 7 2,130,388,
g 8 INVENtONes TOr SAIE OF USG. . ...\ .v ' ee s s e 2,324,446.] 8 2,508,884,
s| 9 Prepaid expenses anddeferredcharges......... ... ... o i, 16,293,847 9 21
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis. : :
Complete Part VI of Schedule D ................... 10a| 493,818,174.¢ S
b Less: accumulated depreciation. ................,,, 10b| 286,674,603.| 182,186,184.|10c| 207,143,571.
11 Investments — publicly traded securities. .. ........... .. i e 70,165,579.[ 1 81,648,984,
12 Investments — other securities. See Part IV, line 14 ........ ... .o oot 12
13  Investments — program-related. See PartV, line 11................. .. ... ... 13
14 Infangible assels. . ... . e e 14 562,500.
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11, .. o i e 122,224,926.]15 349,133,970,
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequal line 34 .. ... 573,340,985, 16 786,477,975.
17  Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . ..., o v i i s 94,156, 443.117 104,386,621.
18 Grants payable. . ... e e e 18
19 Deferred revenUE. ... . e e e e e e e 250,431.| 18 429,637,
L] 20 Tax-exemptbond Babifities. .. ... .. 63,184,024.(20 215,937,879,
L 21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D...........
P 22 loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
L key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons,
! Complete Partlof Schedule L .. ... 0 e
'E 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable fo unrelated third parties . ...............
§1 24 Unsecured notes and foans payable to unrelated third parties. ..................
25 Otlner liabilities {including federal income tax, imyables to related third parties,
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. . 103,991,391.[25 93,560, 910.
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 . ... .. . oo e 261,582,289.| 26 414,315,047,
N Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [¥|and complete [
¥ lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. i
A1 27 Unrestricted Net assels . .. oottt e ) 3';3',7 , , .
g 28 Temporarily restricled netassels. . . ........ .. o 23,279,271,
§ 22 Permanently restricted net assets. ... ..o i i e 10,673,069.[29 10,893,832
8 Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » D """ :
5 and complete lines 30 through 34,
B 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds. .........o oo 30
B | 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund................., 3
ﬂ 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . ........... 52
@ 83 Tolalnetassets or fundbalances. ... ... i i i e 311,758,6596.] 38 372,162,928,
3 34 Total liabilities and net assets/ffund balances............................ . ... 573,340,985.| 34 786,477,975.
BAA Form 980 (2012

TEEAONIIL GiAO3N3




Form 990 (2012) Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501

Page 12

i Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part X1. ... ... . i .,

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIH, column (A), line 12). ... i o e i e 111,297,575,706.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), e 28 .ottt s 2 11,246,290,323.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtractline 2 fromline 1. ... ... o 3 51,285, 383.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)). ................. 4 311,758,696,
5 Netunrealized gains {losses) on NVESIMENts . ., ... . i e i i 5 -1,971,685,
6 Donated services and use of facilities . . .. ... 0 o 6
7 Ve et BB ES. . oL ittt e e e e e e 7
8 Prior period adfUstments. . ... e a
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0). . .Sge._Schedule O .. . . ... . 9 11,090,544,
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 {must equal Part X, line 33,
O By . ot it e e e e e e e e e 10 372,162,928,

Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPart XiL.......... ... i i,

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: DCash Accrual DOther

if the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,' axplain
in Schedule Q.

if “Yes,' check a box below fo indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

D Separate basis DConsolidated basis DBoth consolidated and separate basis

If Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both;

Separate basis A Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis
P

c If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . ........................

If the erganization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain
in Schedule O.

3a As aresult of a faderal award, was the organization required to underge an audit or audits as set forth in the Singie
Audit Act and OMB ClroUlar A- 1337 L. e e e e e e e e e e

b If *Yes,' did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? [f the organizaticn did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule © and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . ...........................

3a] X

3b; &

BAA
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SCHEDULE A

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)3) organization or a section
A247(a)¥1) nonexempt charitable trust.

» Attach to Form 990 or Form 930-EZ. » See separate instructions.

OMB No, 1545-0047

2012

Natte of the organization

Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)
Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC)

01-0211501

Employer identification number

Reason for Public Charity Status (Al organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)

o N

name, city, and state:

[5:3

~

0w

. A church, convention of churches or association of churches described in section T70(b)1XANi).
. A school described in section 170(b)}1XAXii). (Attach Schedule E.)

A hospital ar a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)1XAXiii).

I A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)1XAXiii). Enter the hospital's

omplete Part 1)

D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in section
176X 1XAXV). (Complete Part I1.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)1XAXY).

An organization that norma[lé receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described
in section 170¢(bXT¥AXvi). (
A community trust described in section 1T70(b)}1XAXvD. (Complete Part 1.}

D An organization that normally receives: (1} more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from activities

related to its exampt functions — subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross invesiment income and
ggre!at?dtbusinisisl ltz;xable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975, See section 509(aX2).
omplete Part L1,

n

10 An organization crganized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)4).
An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, fo perform the functions of, or carry out the purposes of one of more publicly

supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 50%a)3). Check the box that describes the type of
supporting organization and complete lines tle through 11h.

c |:| Type il — Functionally integrated
? this box, | certity that the organization is not controfled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified lS)ersons
0

a DTypeI b D
o [[]By checkin

Type It

d |:| Type Il — Non-functionally integrated

undation managers and other than one or mere publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or

section 509(a)(2).
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that is a Type [, Type Il or Type 1l supporting organization,

ROk TS B0 L L e e e e e e e e D
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the following persens?

Yes [ No
() A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or togsther with persons described in {i) and (i) ,
below, the governing body of the supported arganizalion?. .. ... oo st e oo e, g
(i) A family member of a persen described in {( above? ... . o e 1 g (i)
(i) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in () or () above? ... .. i e 11 g (i)

h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

() Name of supported
organization

(iiy EIN

(ii)) Type of erganization
(descrbed on lines 19
ahove or IRC seclion

() Is the
organization ir
column (i) listed in

) Did you notify
& organization in
colurmn (@) of your

(i) Is the
arganization in
column ()

{uli) Amount of monetary
support

(see Instructions)) ycéjorc%?%r:m;ng support? organlijzl%c.i?in the
Yes No Yes No | Yes Neo
(A)
(2]
©
D)
&)
Total

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ,

TEEAQ40IL 08/09N12
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 920-E7) 2012 Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170{b)(1XA)iv) and 170(b)(1}{A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part [Il. If the
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1.}

Section A. Public Support

g:é?gﬂf; gyﬁgrﬁm fiscal year (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (&) 2012 {6 Total
1 Gifts, grants, contribulions, and
membership fees received, (Do not
include any ‘unusual grants.’). .. .. ...

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either patd to or expended
onitsbehalf.,................

3 The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. ...

4 Total. Add lines t through 3.. ..

5 The portion of total
contributions by each person
(other than a governmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, celumn {f) ...

6 Public support. Subtract line 5
fromlined...................

Section B. Total Support

ggs';;ggg{ gyﬁ;r_(f’r fiscal year (2) 2008 (k) 2009 (¢) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (H Total

7 Amounts fromlined...........

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from
similar sources . ..............

92 Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carriedon....................

10 Other income. Do not include
gain or toss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
PartIvVy. ... n

11 Total supgort. Add lines 7
through 10 ...t

12 Gross receipts from related activities, ete (see instructions).

iz ]

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stOP Rere ... ... . e e > |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2012 (line 6, column (f) divided by fine 11, column {D)............ ... ... cvnit, 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2011 Schedule A, Part ], line 14 .. ... ... ... . 15 %
16a 33-1/3% support test — 2012. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and the line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . ....... ... ... .. i > |:|

b 33-1/3% support test — 2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 162, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... ... ... . i e e > I:]

17 a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10%
or more, and if the erganization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this bex and stop here. Explain in Part IV how
the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .......... > D

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2011, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 18a, 16b, or 173, and line 15 is 10%
or more, and it the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the

organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization............... >
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions ., . . . »
BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 930-E2) 2012
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 3
I Support Schedule for Qrganizations Described in Section 509(a}(2)

{Complete only if you checked the box on tine 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part !, If the organization fails
to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part [1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal yr heginning in) » (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, confributions
and membership fees
received. (Oo not include
any ‘unusual grants.} ... .....
2 Gross receipts from admis-
sions, merchandise sold or
services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related 1o the organization's
tax-exempt purpose..........
3 Gross receipts from activities

that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513. .

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended on
itsbehalf....................

5 The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. ..

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5. ..

7 a Amounts included on lines 1,
2, and 3 received from
disqualified persons. .........

b Amounts included on fines 2
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
excead the greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
fortheyear..................

cAddlines7aand7b,.........

8 Public support (Subtract line
ZefromlineB)..............

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal yr begirning in) » (a) 2008 (b) 2009 {c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e)2012 () Total
9 Amounts fromline6..........
10 a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on secuwrities loans, rents, *
royalties and income from
similar sources ...
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511

taxes) from businesses
acquired after june 30, 1975 ..

¢ Add lines 10aand T0h........

11 Net income from unrelaled business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether ar not the business is
regularly carrieden ., ............

12  Other income. Do not inciude

gain or loss from the sale of
capl[t?\llassets {Explain in
ar

13 Total support. (Add Ins 9, 10¢, 11, and 12,

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a sectior 501(c){3)
organization, chack this box and Stop here . ... e e e e e > |_l

Section C. Computation of Public Suppotrt Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2012 (line 8, column (f} divided by line 13, colurmn (). ...... .. ... ... . ... 15 %

16 Public support percentage from 2011 Schedule A, Part 1, line 15, . ... o o i i e 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investiment Income Percentage

17 Investment income percentage for 2012 (line 10¢, cofumn {f) divided by line 13, column (B)...............ovns 17 %

18 tnvestment income percentage from 2011 Schedute A, Partlll, line 17... ... . o o 18 %

19 a 33-1/3% support tests — 2012, If the organization did not check the box on ling 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and fine 17

is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization............. >

b 33-1/3% support tests — 2011, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or ling 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... . .. > H

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this bex and see instructions. ... .......... >
BAA TEEAQA03L  08/09N12 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012




Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 4

Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part 1, line 10;
Part Il, line 17a or 17b; and Part lll, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information.
{See instructions).

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-E2) 2012
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OME No, 1545-0047

SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities

(Form 980 or 990-EZ) 201 2

For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527

» Complete if the organization is described below. » Attach to Form 930 or Form 990-EZ. Q] i
» See separate instructions. :

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

If the organization answered 'Yes,’ to Form 980, Part IV, line 3, or Form 980-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts [-A and B. Do not complete Part I-C.
® Section 501(c} (other than section 501{c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts [-A and C below. Do not complete Part |-B.
® Section 527 organizations: Complete Part |-A only.
If the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h}): Complete Part lI-A. Bo not complete Part [-B,

. gecttilc;nASOI(c)(?:) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501¢h)): Complete Part I:-B. Do not complete
art 11-A.

If the organization answered "Yes,' to Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35a (Proxy Tax), then
® Section 501{c)(®), (5), or (6} organizations; Complete Part I,

Name of erganization Employer identification number

Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.
1 Provide a description of the organization's direct and indirect palitical campaign activities in Part |V,

2 POl BN S, . . o i e e e e e e e >3
B VMU T MOLES, . .o e e e e e e

nter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955, . ... ... . ... ............ >4 0.
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955................... -3 0.

2 Enter the amount of the filing crganization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527 exempt

UGN ACHVI S . .. e it ettt e e e s » 4
3 IT_ota% ;t)}(empt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-PCL, -
= 17« T PP
Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this YEar? .. ... .. ... c.oueiaetnt ittt ee e []yes [ ]Mo

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political crganizations to which the filing
organization made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds, Also enter the
amount of political cantributions received that were promptly and directly delivered fo a separate political or%anlzatlcn, such as a separate

segregated fund or a political action committes (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part [V,
(a)Name (b) Address () EIN {d} Amount paid from filing (&) Amount of polilicat
organization's funds. I contributions received and
none, enter-Q-, promptly and direcily
dedivered to a separate
political organization. If
none, enter -0-.

(M e e e e e e e

@ e —————

®  pmmmmmommmmmm oo

“o e ————————

(=) S e

& e e e ———

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ, Schedute € (Form 930 or 99C-EZ) 2012
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sohedule € (Forn %0 ot W0ED) 2012 Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 2
E Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election under
section 501(h)).
A Check » D if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group mermber's name,
address, EIN, expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures),
B Check » D if the filing organization checked box A and 'limited control' provisions apply.

Limits on Lobhying Expenditures (a) Filing (b) Affilfated
(The term "expenditures’ means amounts paid ot incurred.) organizalion’s totals group totats

1 a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying). .. ............
b Total lobbying expenditures to infiuence a legistative body (direct lobbying) . ...............
¢ Total lobbying expenditures (add lines Taand 1h)...........o o i
t Other exempt purpose expenditures . . ..o e e e
e Total exempt purpose expenditwes (add fines fcand 1d)......... ..o

{ Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table in
Ot COITINS, o e e e e

If the amount on line 1e, column {a) or (h) Is: The lobbyihg nontaxable amount is;
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line Te,

QOver $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $509,000.
Over $£,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000,
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over §1,500,600.
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000,

g Grassroots nontaxable amount {enter 26% of line 10.............. e e
h Subiract line ig from line 1a. [f zero or less, enter -0- . .. e e
i Subtract line f from line 1c, fzeroorless, enter -0-. ... ... .. i .,

i If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line Ti, did the organization file Form 4720 reporting

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five
columns below, See the instructions for lines 2a through 2£.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal
year beyginnigﬁg i (a) 2009 (b} 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) Total

2 a Lobbying non-taxable
amount..............

b Lobbying ceiling
amount (150% of line
2a, column 8)......

¢ Tofal lebbying
expenditures .. ......

d Grassroots nontaxabte
amount.............

e Grassroots celling
amount (150% of line
2d, column (&) ......

f Grassroots lobbying
expenditures ........

BAA Schedule € (Form 990 or 930-EZ) 2012
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Schedufe C (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 3

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c}3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
(election under section 501(h)).

(a) (b)
For each 'Yes' response to lines 1a through 17 below, provide in Part IV a detailed description "
of the lobbying activity. Yes | No Amount

See Part IV . o i ) .

1 During the year, did the filing or%anlzatlon attempt to influsnce foreign, national, state or focal
legislation, including any attempt to inflience public opinion on a fegislative matter or referendum,
through the use of;

A VDI B S L L e e e e e e e

o
Ry
c
=2
=
=
=)
=)
n
=
-
=
oy
=3
=
=
i)
o
=]
2
o
g
o
D
=
[e]
&
4l
a
4]
il
=
3
3
D
3
=
14g]
-
il i bt b

62,506,

j Total. Add lines Te through ... oo i e e e
2 a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501{C)@)7.............
kIf 'Yes,' enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912 ... .. ... o e,
c If 'Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912, ..........

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 507(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or
section 501(c)(6).

Yes | No
1 Woere substantially all (80% or more) dues received nondeductible by members?. ... ... o i 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 0 16557 .00t i i i 2
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political expenditures from the prioryear? . ............ .. ... ..., 3

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c}(4), section 501(c)5), or section 501(c)
{6) and ifdei$her (a) BOTH Part llI-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered 'No' OR (b) Part llI-A, line 3, is
answered 'Yes.'

1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts from mMembers ... o i e 1

2 Section 162(e) nondeductible tobbying and political expendiires {do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

RN g =T R ;a-

b ATy OVEr IO (B8 YA . . oottt et e e e e e e e e 2b
Lo P 2¢
3 Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1){A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues. ......... .. 3

4 i notices were sent and the amount on line 2¢ exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agres to carryover fo the reasonable estimate of nondeductibie lobbying and politicai
EXPENAHUNE MEXE VAT L e e e e e e 4

5 Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see instructions). .......... .. .. ... .ol 5
Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part |-B, line 4; Part |-G, line 5; Part II-A (affiliated group hist);
Part il-A, line 2; and Part II-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional informaticn.

BAA Schedule € (Form 990 or 990-EZ} 2012
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SCHEDULE D ] . OMS No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 2012
» Complete if the organization answered 'Yes,' to Form 990,
Department of the Treasury PartiV, lines 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 111, 12a, or 12b,
Internal Revenue Servica * Attach to Form 990. » See separate instructions. :
Name of the organization i Employer identification number

Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

Fastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

U BN =

(a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atend ofyear. ................
Aggregate confributions to (during year). ... ..
Aggregate grants from {during year) .........
Aggregate value atend ofyear..............

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?. ............... ... ... |:| Yes D No

Did the organization inform afl grartees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefll? . ... e e DYes D No

3

| Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of an historicaily important land area
Protection of natural habitat BPreservation of & certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
Compiete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified censervation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the fax year,
Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Tolal number of conservation easements. .. ... .. i 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservationeasements. ............. .. .. . i i, 2b
¢ Number of conservation easemants on a certified historic structure included in @)............. 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and not cn a historic
structure listed in the National Register. . ... ... e i 2d

Number of canservation easements modified, transforred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the

tax year ™

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »

Does the organization have a written pelicy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,

and enforcement of the conservation easements Eholds? . ... ..., L i i it e Yes |:| No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
| J

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforging conservation easements during the year
-5

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) abdve satisfy the requirements of section 170} (&B)(M

and section 1700 B i . o oo e e e e e DYes D No

in Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statsment, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements,

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1

2

a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide,
in Part X|If, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b |f the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
histarical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenuesincluded in Form 880, Part VIIE line 1. ... e of
(i) Assets included In Form 990, Part X ... o i e 5
If the organization received or held works of art, historical freasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) refaling to these Hems:
a Revenues included in Form 880, Part VI, ine L .. o e 5
b Assets included In Form G000, Part X . .o . e e e e e -3

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. TEEA330IL 09/18A12 Schedule D (Form 990) 2012




D (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501
1| Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

Page 2

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
iters {check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research e Other
[ Preservation for future generations

4 Ero;ri;&iﬁla description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
ar .

5 During the year, did the organization soficit or recelve donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar asseis

Yes

scrow and Custodial Arrangements, Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part [V, line 9, or
“reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
O PO 00, Part X o i e e e e

b If "Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIlf and complete the following table;

Amount
C BeginNiNg BalanCe . . ot e e e Te
d Additions during e Year .. ... e e 1d
e Distributions during the year .. ... .o v i Te

f ENdING DalanCe . ... .o e e e e 1f

P i Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current {b) Prior year (¢) Two years (d) Three years (e) Four years
1a Beginning of year batance ... .. 23,506,673.| 21,018,620.| 21,974,979, 20,890,628.| 22,052,765,
b Contributions., ............... 98,419, 124,365, 148,655, 54, 006. 42,199.
& o loseeg oM camings, G2NS, | 928,808.] 3,506, 614. 236,593.| 2,264,755.| -160,607.
d Grants or scholarships. ........
S o programaures for facillies |1 058,852, 1,142,926.| 1,341,607.| 1,234,409.| 1,043,729,
f Administrative expenses. ... ...
g End of year balance. .......... 25,275,048.1F 23,506,673, 21,018,620. 21,974,980.! 20,890,628,
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (2)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment » 1.60%
b Permanent endowment » 98.40%
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment » %
The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(D unrelated organizations . .. ... ..o 3a(i) X
(i) related OrganiZations ..o o e e e e Ja(ii)] X
b If "Yes' to 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?. . ....... . ... i i ienn 3b X |
4 Describe in Part XIfl the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds. See Part XIII
: { Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other basis| (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
{investment) basis (other} depreciation
Jaland ... ... 2,234,601, 2,234,601,
bBuildings. ... 124,971,069, 60,186,006, 64,785,063.
¢ Leasehold improvements . .............. ..., 12,201, 640. 3,452,740, 8,748,900,
dEquipment................ 300,314,929, 213,868,685, 86,446,244,
B OBl 54,095,935, 9,167,172, 44,928, 763.
Total. Add lines 1a through te, {Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).). . ..........oooie »  207,143,571.
BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2012
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Page 3

ScheduIeD (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)
: Investments — Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

N/A

(&) Description of security or category
(including name of security)

(b) Book value

(c) Method of vaivation; Cost or
end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derlvatives ... ............................

(2) Closely-held equity interests . . ,............... P

(3) Other

Total (Co.’umn (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 12.). .
1N Investments — Program Related. See

Form 990, Part X,

N/A

(a) Description of investment type

{b) Boak value

{c) Method of valuation; Cost or
end-of-year market value

M

@

&)

@

&

&

@)

®

(&)

(0

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, calumn (B) line 13.} .. ™

Other Asgsets, See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

{a) Dascription (b} Book value

(1) Assets Held Under Trust Indenture 137,755, 352,
(&) Beneficial Trust Assets 2,145,026,
(3) Board Designated Funded Depreciation 132,246,054,
%) Estimated Prof. Liab. Claims Receivable 19,611,203.
) Funds Held by Bond Trustee 12,627,077.
(& Investment in Net Assets held @ EMHSF 32,334,343,
() Self~Insurance Funds Held by Trustee 12,414,915,
8
&)
(10

349,133,970,

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 15.) .. ... . i >
Par Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

(a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

(2) Accrued Post Retirement Benefits 70,915,060,
3 Liability Under Cap Lease Obligatio 560, 480,
4 Lt Liability - Cerner RHO 981, 810.
(5 Notes Payable to Related Org, EMHS 560, 625.
&) Other Self Insurance Liab 255,264, |
(7} Reserve for Asset Disposal Costs 676,468,

(8) Reserve for Prof. Liab. Self Ins.

19,611,203,

(&)

(10}

an

Total. {Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B} line 25.). . . . ..

> 93,560, 910.

ﬁ’ -._':

2. FIN 48 (ASC 740) Footnote, In Part XliI, provide the text of the fooknote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization’s Jiability fer uncertain tax positions

under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Sheck here if the text of the footnote has been provided inPart XIH .. ......... ... .. ... .. See Part XIIT

BAA

TEEA3303L 1272312
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 4
: Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return N/A
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements ............. ..o et 1
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIIE, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains oninvestments......... ... . o i i Za
b Donated services anduse of facilities .. ... ... i i 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants. . ... .. i e 2c
d Other (Describe inPart XIILY. .. ..o 2d
e Addlines 2a throUgh 2d . ..o 2e
3 Sublract line 2e from e 1 ... .o e e e 3
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line 7b.............. d4a
b Cther Describe InPart XHLY. .. ... .o 4h

C A lINEs da and A, .. ..o e e e
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part L, line 12) ... ... o e

PArEXIE Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return N/A
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements .. ... ...

2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facilities ... ......... ... i 2a
b Prior year adjustments .. .. ... i e e Z2b
C OB 108885, . .o i e e e e 2c
dOther (Describe in Part XU .. ..o o e, 2d

eAddlines Zathrough 2d ... ... ... ... i
3 Sublractline Zefrom line 1. ... i e
4 Amounts included on Form 890, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, lne 7b. . ............

b Other (Describe N Part XL . ..o e e e e

c Add ines da and A, . L. e e e e
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [, ine 18.). . ........... ... ... ... ..

: tHE| Supplemental Information

Comiﬂete this part to tgrovide the descriptions reqguired for Part |1, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part ll], lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V,
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XIl, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Internal Revenue Service to be tax-exempt charitable organizations as described in
BAA Schedule D (Form 990} 2012

TEEA3304L 11/30M12
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| Supplemental Information (continued) '
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___tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax status. Under __

BAA TEEA3305L (06/08/12 Schedule D {Form 990) 2012




OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE H Hospitals
(Form 990)
» Complete if the organization answered "Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, question 20.
» Attach to Form 990. » See separate instructions.
Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

2012

Employer identification number

01-0211501

| Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost

2 If the organization had multiple hospital facilities, indicate which of the following best describes application of the
financial assistance policy to the various hospital facilities during the tax year.

|:| Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities D Applied uniformty to most hospital facilities
D Generally tailored to individual hospital facilities

3 Answer the following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of the
organization's patients during the tax year.

a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) to determine eligibility for providing free care?

[ }100% [ ]150% [X]200% [ ]other %
b Did the organization use FPG to determine eligibility for providing discounted care?

[[]200% 300% [[]350%

¢ If the organization did not use FPG to determine eligibility, describe in Part VI the income based criteria for
determining eligibility for free or discounted care. Include in the description whether the organization used an
asset test or other threshold, regardiess of income, to determine eligibility for free or disceunted care,

[ ]250% [ ] 400% Other %

4 Did the organization's financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year

provide for free or discounted care to the 'medically indigent™?. . ... . e

Complete the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H instructions. Do not submit these
worksheets with the Schedule H.

7 Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost

Financial Assistance and (@) Number of (b} Persons (cLToml community (d) Direct offsetting () Net community (N Parcent
Means-Tested Government attivities or se;(vedl ahefit expense revenue benefit expense of total
Programs E)org (r)antgs {optional) expense

a Financial Assistance at

cost {from Workshest 1)....... 3,654 13,740,606. 403,794, 13,336,812. 2.16
h Medicaid &from

Worksheet 3, column a)....... 80,568 122,561,307. 74,324,186, 48,237,121, 7.82
¢ Costs of other means-tested government

pragrams {from Worksheet 3, column b) | 7,516,293, 7,516,293. 1.22
d Total Financiai Assistance and

Means-Tested Government Programs. . . 0] 84,222| 143,813,206, 74,727,980, 69,090,226.| 11.20

Other Benefits

e Community health improvement

services and community benefit

operations (from Worksheet 4) . ... ... 9 93 3,280,038, 3,280,038, 0.53
f Heaith professions education

(from Worksheet 8). . . ............ 12 506 2,807,322, 2,807,322, 0.45
g Subsidized health services

(from Worksheet6). .. ............ 1 68,132, 68,132, 0.01
h Research (from Warksheet 7). . ...... 3 1,699,547, 1,699,547, 0.28
i Cash and in-kind contributions for

community benefit (from Workshest 8) . . 2 14 10,105. 10,105, 0.
j Total. Other Benefits.......... 27 613 7,865,144, 0. 7,865,144, 1.27
k Total. Add line 7d end 7j....... 27 84,835 151,683,350, 74,727, 980. 76,955,370.1 12.47

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Nolice, see the instructions for Form 990. TEEA380IL 12/2812
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H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 2
Community Building Activities Complete this table if the organization conducted any community
building activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building activities
promoted the health of the communities it serves.

(ayNumber of {b) Persons (¢} Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community () Parcent
ackivities or served building expense revenue building expense of total
programs {optional) expense
(optional)
1 Physical improvements and housing. .
2 Economic development. ..........
3 Community support.............
4 Environmental improvements . . . . ..
5 Leadership development and training
for communily members. . ...... ..
6 Coalition building . .............
7 Community healih
improvement advocacy. . ... ......
8 Waikforce development. . ... ... ...
9 Other.......................
10 Total., . \vviniinnnn.., 0 0 0. 0. 0.
g Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense in accordance with Healthcare Financial Management
Association Statement NO. 107, e e
2 Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense. Explain in Part Vi the
methodology used by the organization to astimate thisamount ........................... 12,302,327.
3 Enter the estimated amount of the organization’s bad debt expense attributable to patients
sligible under the organization's financial assistance policy. Explain in Part V| the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and rationale, if any, for
including this portion of bad debt as community benefit. ........... ... ... ..ol
4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes bad debt
expense of the page number on which this fooinote is contained in the attached financial statements. Part VI
Section B. Medicare
5 Enter total revenue received from Medicare (including DSHand IME). ..............ccvt. .. 227,329,205,
Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to paymentsonline 5..................... 258,183,417,

6
7 Subtract line 6 from line 5. This is the surplus {or shortfall)...............................
8

Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in fine 7 should be treated as community benefit.
Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on line 6.

Check the box that describes the method used:
D Cost accounting systemn Cost to charge ratio

D Other

Section C. Collection Practices

b If Yes,' did the organization's collection policy that aplplied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year
owed for patients who are known to qualify for
financial assistance? Describe inPart VI . .. ... . . e

contain provisions on the collection practices to be fol

-30,854,212,

......................

Part VI

9b| X

| Management Companies and Joint Ventures (see instructions)

(a) Name of entity {b) Description of primary (c) Qrganization's | (d) Officers, directors, (&) Physicians'
activity of enfity profit % or stock trustees, of key profit % or stock

oF Sk b 5 Cership %
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
n
12
13

BAA TEEA3802.  01/09/13 Schedule H (Form 930) 2012




Schedule H (Form 950) 2012 Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 3
1 Facility Information

Section A. Hospital Facilities Ucensed| General | Chil- | Teach: | Critical| Re- | ER- | ER- Other (describs) Fality
(list in order of size, from largest to smallest — hospital| medica h%g':iil ol Rt f:caﬁicg Mhours | olhe feg;'gﬁ;}“
see instructions) surgieal

How many hospital facilities did the organization operate

during the tax year?

Mame, address and primary website address

1 Eastern Maine Medical Center X1 X X X

TEEAIZ03L 011413

Schedule H {(Form 990) 2012




1 Facility Information (continued)

Schedule H (Form 980) 2012 FEastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 4

Copy 1 of 1

Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or facility reporting group

For single facility filers only: line number of hospital facility (from Schedule H, Part V, Section A)

Communily Health Needs Assessment (Lines 1 through 8¢ are optional for tax years beginning on or before March 23, 2012)

1 During the tax year or either of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct

a community health needs assessment (CHNA)? If No," skipto line O ... ... . i i e,

H "Yes,' indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply):
a E A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
b El Demegraphics of the community

the community
d E How data was obtained
e E The heatth needs of the community

f - Primary and chronic disease needs and other health issues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and
minorify groups

:] Information gaps that fimit the hospital facility’s ability to assess the community's health needs

g
h z] The process for consulting with persons representing the community's interests
i
|

Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA: 2011

3 In conducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from reprasentatives of the community sesved by the hospital facility,

including thoss with spacial knowledge of or expertise in public health? If "Yes,' describe in Part Vi how the hospita! facility took into account

input from persons who represent the community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted. ... ... ... ... .. ... Part VI 3 X

4 Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted with one or more other hospital facilities? If "Yes,' list the

ather hospital facilities 10 Part V. oo et et e Part VI

If “Yes,' indicate how the CHNA was made widely available (check alf that apply):

a [l Hospital facility's website

b Avaitable upon request from the hospital facility

¢ [¥] Other (describe in Part VI) Part VI
6 {f ﬂdweth)ospital facility addressed needs identified in its most recently conducted CHNA, indicate how (check all that apply

o date):

a E Adoption of an implementation strategy that addresses each of the community health needs identified through the CHNA

b z Execution of the implementation strategy

c : Participation in the development of a community-wide plan

d : Participation in the execution of a community-wide plan

e | |Inclusion of a community benefit section in operaticnal plans

an Adoption of a budget for provision of services that address the needs identified in the CHNA

g ? Prioritization of heaith needs in its community

h [¥] Prioritization of services that the hospital facility will undertake to meet health needs in its community

i ? Other {describe in Part V) Part VI

7 Did the hospital facility address all of the needs identified in its most recently conducied CHNA? If 'No', explain

c X] Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the health needs of

z] The process for identifying and pricritizing community health needs and services to meet the community health needs

E Other (describe in Part VI) Part VI

in Part VI which needs it has not addressed and the reasons why it has not addressed such needs. .. .. ....... Part VI| 7 X

8 a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a CHNA as

required By S8CHON B0 {03 . oot e e e

hospital facilities? §

c If "Yes' o line 8b, what is the total amount of section 4952 excise fax the organization reported on Form 4720 for all of its

8a X

BAA Schedule H (Form 990) 2012}
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Schedule H (Form 980) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 5
1 Facility Information (continued) Eastern Maine Medical Center Cepy 1 of 1
Financial Assistance Policy Yes | No
Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that;
9 Explained eligibility criterla for financial assistance, and whether such assistance includes free or discounted care?....... 9 X
10 Used federal poverty guidelines (FPG) fo determine eligibility for providing freecare?........... ... it iniinns 10 X

If "Yes,' indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care: 200 %
if ‘No,' explain in Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used, T

11 Used FPG to determine eligibility for providing discounted Care? ... ... i e
If 'Yes,' indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care: 300%
If "No," explain in Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used. T

12 Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients?
It 'Yes,' indicate the factors used in determining such amounts (check all that apply):

Income level

Asset level

Medical indigency

Insurance status

Uninsured discount

Medicaid/Medicare

1 State regulation

| Other (describe in Part VI)

I

o ™o o0 T

If *es,' indicate how the hospitat facility publicized the policy (check all that apply):

(] The policy was posted on the hospital facility's website

|| The policy was attached to billing invoices

| | The policy was posted in the hospital facility's emergency rooms or waiting rooms
| The policy was posted in the hospital facilily's admissions offices

The policy was provided, in writing, to patients on admission to the hospital facility
The policy was available on request

Other (describe in Part VI) Part VI

- 0 Q O T D

e

g

Billing and Collections

15 Did the hespital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained actions the hospital facility may take upon non-payment? .. .....................

16 Chack all of the following actions against an Individual that were permitted under the hospital facili%:'s policies during the
tax year before making reasonable efforts to determine the patient's eligibility under the facility's FAP:

a D Reporting to credit agency

b { ] Lawstits

c D Liens on residences

d | }Body attachments

e |:| Other similar actions (describe in Part VI)

17 Did the hospital facility or an authorized a third party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before
making reasonable efforts to determine the patient's eligibility under the facility's FARP?. ... .. ... ... . ... . ... ...

If 'Yes,' check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged:
a |:| Reporting to credit agency
b D Lawstlits
¢ D Liens on residences
d D Body attachments
e D Other similar actions (describs in Part VI}

15

BAA Schedule H (Form 920) 2012)
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Schedule H (Form 930) 2012  Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 6
: 1 Facility Information (continued) ' Fastern Maine Medical Center Copy 1 of 1

18 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility made before initiating any of the actions checked in line 17 {check all that apply)

a D Notified patients of the financial assistance policy on admission

b D Notified patients of the financial assistance policy prior to discharge

c D Notified patients of the financial assistance policy in communications with the patients regarding the patients' bills

d [:| Documented its determination of whether patients were eligible for financial assistance under the hospital facility's
financial assistance policy

e [ ] Other (describe in Part V)

Policy Relating to Emetgency Medical Care

Yes | No

19 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care that
requires the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to individuals
regardless of their eligibility under the hospital facility's financial assistance policy? . ... ..o i i i e

If 'No," indicate why:
a D The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
b El The hospital facility's policy was not in writing
c |:| The hospital facility limited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions {describe in Part VI)
d [ | Other (describe in Part Vi)

Charges to Individuals Eligible for Financial Assistance under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)

20 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged o
FAP-eligible individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care,

a D The hospital facility used its lowest negotiated commercial insurance rate when caiculating the maximum amounts
that can be charged

b D The hospital facility used the average of its three lowest negotiated commercial insurance rates when calculating the
maximum amounts that can be charged

c D The hospital facility used the Medicare rates when calculating the maximum amounts that can be charged
d Other (describe in Part VI) Part VI

21 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any of its FAP-eligible individuals, to whorm the hospital facility
provided emergency or other medically necessary services, more than the amounis generally billed fo individuals
Who had INSUranea GOVEIING SUCH Cal T . .. L. i e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e

If *Yes,' explain in Part V],

22 During the tax vear, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individuals an amount equal to the gross
charge for any service provided to that individual?. . ..o e e 22 X

I "Yes,' explain in Part Vi,

Schedule H (Form 990) 2012)
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dedmeH(Fmﬂx%m)ZN2 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

01-0211501 Page 7

A Facility Information (confinued)

Section C. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility
(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 12

Name and address

Type of Facility (describe)

Medical Office Building -

1 Fastern Maine Healthcare Mall
885-925 Union Street physician svc
Bangor, ME 04401
2 EMMC Family Medicine - Hampden Med Office
7 Main Reoad North Building-physician svc
Hampden, ME 04444
3 EMMC Family Medicine of Brewer Med Office
234 State Street Building-physician svc
Brewer, ME 04412
4 EMMC Sleep Diagnostics Med Office
290 State Street Building-outpatient svc
Bangor, ME 0440}
5 EMMC Family Medicine Med Office
Corporate Drive Building~physician svc
Bangor, ME 04401
& Husson Family Med/Ped/Internal Med Office
302 Husson Ave Building-physician svc
Bangor, ME 04401
7 EMMC Orono Family Medicine Med Office
84 Kelly Road Building-physician svc
Orono, ME 04473
8 EMMC Northeast Cardioclogy Med Office
1 Northeast Drive Building-physician svc
Bangor, ME 04401
9 EMMC Urologic Surgery of ME Med Office
55 Broadway, Suite 2 Building-physician sve
Bangor, ME 04401
0 EMMC-Gynecology Associates Med Office
404 State St, Suite 310 Building-physician svc
Bangor, ME 04401
BAA Schedule H (Form 990) 2012
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Schedule

(Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 7
:{ Facility Information (continued)

Section C. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospltal Facility
(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 12

Name and address Type of Facility {describe)

1 EMMC-Phy Prac in Webber Bld Med Office
417 State Street Building-physician svec
Bangor, ME 04401

2 Lafayetie Family Cancer Center Med Office Building-Cancer
33 Whiting Hill Road treatment

Brewer, ME 04412

BAA Schedule H (Form 990) 2012
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Fage 8
Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descrg)tions. Provide the descriptions required for Part [, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part |I; Part lil, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, be, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituerts it serves,

Promotion of communitﬁ health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hosfp%tal facitities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of slrplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in prometing the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
conmmunity benefit report,

8 Faclility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part\XSection B, lines 1j, 3, 4, bc, 61, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14qg, 16e, 17¢, 18, t1y9c, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,

I

[43]

[+2]

~4

Part |, Line 6a - Related Organization Community Benefit Report

The EMMC community benefit report is contained in an annual community benefit report

prepared by Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems which is the parent organization of all

related organizations.

Par |, Line 7 - Explanation of Costing Methodology

Worksheet 2, Ratio of Patient Care Cost-to-Charges is used in calculation

Part |, Line 7, Column F - Explanation of Bad Debt Expense

526,491,770 of bad debt expense, $29,223,699 of charity care, $573,600,337 of

contractual allowances is included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, column (A).

Part lll, Line 4 - Bad Debt Expense

Patient and trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to

collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible

amounts through a charge to earnings and a valuation allowance based on its

assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still

outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off

through a charge to the wvaluation allowance and the applicable patient accounts

receivable, Credit is extended without collateral. The costing methodology used to

determine the amount reported on line 2 is cost to charge ratio

BAA TEEA3B0SL 12/29/12 Schedule H (Form 990) 2012




Schedule H (Form 890) 2012  Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8
Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.
1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part [, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part il; Part [li, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5c¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 186, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,
2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibilily for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
bilted for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves,

5 Promotion of communitf\: health, Provide any other information important to describing how the crganization’s hos#ital facilities or other
h?aith ?are fagilities f)urt er its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, ete.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the crganization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report,

8 Facility reporting garoup(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section B, Hnes 1}, 3, 4, 5c, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 168, 17e, 18e, %c, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,

~1

Part lll, Line 8 - Explanation Of Shortfall As Community Benefit

Medicare losses should be treated as a community benefit because the losses are

incurred in performing an important public service, and Maine hospitals experience

one of the lowest Medicare reimbursement rates in the country.

Part lll, Line 9b - Provisions On Collection Practices For Qualified Patients

All account gquarantors who express an inability to pay inpatient and outpatient

services will be screened for eligibility for charity care using an application and

guidelines established by Fastern Maine Medical Center. An account may be

reconsidered for charity care at any time when new information is available about a

patient’s inability to pav.

Part V, Line 1j - Description of Other Needs Assessment

la EMMC's primary service area includes the contiguous towns in the Greater Bangor

area, While EMMC has a tertiarv mission that encompasses a larger gecographic area,

and we do collaborate with primary providers in more distant regions, the needs

assessment identifies largely primary healthcare issues -- the purview of primary

hospitals--so we have focused on our primary service area.

1b Eastern Maine Medical Center and its related physician practices utilize

extensive electronic medical records, including disease redistries, which provide a

vast amount of data relative to patients in care. The needs assessment provides a

much broader picture of the community as a whole, including the health status of
BAA TEEA3B0BL  12/28/12 Schedule H (Form 990) 2012




Schedule H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8
Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part ll; Part ll, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 2t, and 22.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves,

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important o describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, ete.}.

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

8 Facility reporling group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part\),(Section B, lines 1), 3, 4, 5¢, 61, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, %c, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,

th

o

~J

Part V, Line 1j - Description of Other Needs Assessment {(continued)

individuals not in care, as well as functional health status and social-demographics

(such as employment, income and education levels). The local units of the state’s

public health infrastructure (known as Healthy Maine Partnerships) are also

integrated into the process so that their data relative to health, environmental and

social measures are part of the community dissemination process.

l¢ Fastern Maine Medical Center engaged multiple health resource leaders in the

commnity forum invitation list (as described in Section lg). Additional resources

angd leaders needed were identified in the breakout sessions (see guestion for

breakout participants, Section 1lg EMMC is participating in the CMS Pioneer ACO

through parent company EMHS Beacon Health. The primarvy care practice model is being

rolled cut to Medicare and commercial patients. Through integrated electronic

medical records and embedded nurse care coordinators EMMC is able to provide

seamless and personalized care to our high risk patients and provide more education

and support to those with chronic diseases. The care model is in place throughout

all the EMMC primary care practices. In the EMMC primary service area, key

collaborators going forward will include: EMMC, St. Joseph Healthcare, Community

Health and Counseling Services, Acadia Hospital and Fastern Area Agency on Aging

1d-le-1f

EMHS, the parent company of Eastern Maine Medical Center, routinely conducts a
BAA TEEA3B08L. 12/29112 Schedule H (Form 880) 2012




Schedule H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8
Supplemental information |

Complete this part to provide the following Information.

71 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Il; Part [il, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance, Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persens who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

4 Comnunity information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
conskiluents it serves,

5 Promotion of communitﬁ health. Provide any other information important fo describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other
h?alth ti:arefJagilitie{s f)urt or its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (s.9., open medical staff, community board, use
of surpius funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report,

8 Facility reporting group(s}. [f applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section %, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e, t13/90, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,

L]

~I

Part V, Line 1j - Description of Other Needs Assessment (continued)

community health needs assessment (Hereafter needs assessment) across the service

area of all of its member hospitals. The most recent assessment, published in 2011,

was conducted under a contract with the University of New England Center for Health

Planning, Policy and Research (CHPPR) and the University of Southern Maine’s Muskie

School for Public Health,. Using a methodology developed by CHPPR over decades of

work, the assessment inteqrates primary data from a telephone survey to heads of

households with secondary data retrieved from state databases (ED usage, Mortality,

Cancer Registry, eftc.). That data is reviewed in the context of multiple health

related domains to develop a composite view of health status, behavioral risks, and

barriers to access and care. Results are compared to national and state benchmarks

to produce priorities and recommendations as prepared by the consultants,

ig See question #3

lh On a statewide basis, the research consultants developed an advisorv committee

that met two times during the assessment research and drafting of the publication.

These individuals represented a broad spectrum of backgrounds, and they are named:

Carol Bell, Healthvy Maine Partnership Director; Kelly Bentley, Healthv Maine

Partnership Director; Gail Dana-Sacco, Wabanaki Center (serving tribal populations):

Patricia Hart, Maine Development Foundation; Barbara lLeonard, MPH, Maine Health

Access Foundation (philanthropic foundation focused on access to care in Maine);
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8
'E Supplemental Information
Compiete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part }l; Part (ll, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Sectien B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17¢, 18¢, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

2 MNeeds assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B,

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance, Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financiat assistance policy.

Community information, Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the gecgraphic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of communit};j( health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other
h?alth <l:aref fagilitéef f)urt er its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community {e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated heaith care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5e, 61, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17s, 18g, %c, 19d, 20d, 21p, and 22, P

£

23

~1

Part V, Line 1j - Description of Other Needs Assessment (continued)

Becca Matusovich, Maine Center for Disease Contreol: Tisa Miller, Bingham Foundation

{philanthropic foundation); Dora Ann Mills, MD, Maine Center for Disease Control;

Elizabeth Mitchell, Maine Health Management Coalition (representing the state’s maijor

employers, insurers and providers); Trish Riley, Governor’s Office of Health Policy

and Finance (GOHPF); Brian Rines, Advisory Committee for Health Svstem Development

(overseen by GOHPF): Rachel Talbot-Ross, Maine Chapier, MNAACP: Ted Trainer, Public

Health Coordinating Council Shawn Yardley, Citv of Bangor, Department of Health and

Welfare. In the local area served by the assessment, multiple parties were engaged

in dissemination of the asgsessment findings and establishment of priorities (see

Section 5).

Part V, Line 3 - Account Input from Person Who Represent the Community

On a statewide basis, the research consultants developed an advisory committee that

met two times during the assessment regearch and drafting of the publication. These

indiwviduals represented a broad spectrum of backgrounds, and they are named: Carcl

Bell, Healthy Maine Partnership Director; Kelly Bentley, Healthv Maine Partnership

Director; Gail Dana-Sacco, Wabanaki Center (serving tribal populations); Patricia

Hart, Maine Development Foundation; Barbara Leonard, MPH, Maine Health Access

Foundation (philanthropic foundation focused on access to care in Maine): Becca

Matusovich, Maine Center for Disease Control; Lisa Miller, Bingham Foundation
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1 Supplementai Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il; Part Il}, lines 4, 8, and Sb; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 18e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition o any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B,
3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and parsons who may be

billed for paiient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financiat assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of communitﬁ health. Provide any other information important o describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system, If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affitiates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

8 Facility repotting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facliity in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section g, tines 1f, 3, 4, B¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 16e, 17¢e, 18e, %c, 19d, 20d, Eﬁ and 22,

o

~

Part V, Line 3 - Account Input from Person Who Represent the Community (continued)

(philanthropic foundation); Dora Ann Mills, MD, Maine Center for Disease Control;

Elizabeth Mitchell, Maine Health Management Coaliticon (representing the state’s major

employers, insurers and providers); Trish Riley, Governor’s Office of Health Policy

and Finang:e (GOHPF) ; Brian Rines, Advisory Committee for Health System Development

(overseen by GOHPF); Rachel Talbot-Ross, Maine Chapter, NAACP; Ted Trainer, Public

Health Coordinating Council Shawn Yardley, Citv of Bangor, Department of Health and

Welfare.

Part V, Line 4 - List Other Hospital Facilities that Jointly Conducted Needs Assessment

The needs assessment was developed as a statewide collaborative between the state’s

three largest health systems: EMHS (in central, eastern and northern Maine),

MaineGeneral (in central Maine) and MaineHealth {in southern Maine). Multiple

collaborators were involved in the dissemination of the assessment findings and

establishment of priorities (see Section 5).

Part V, Line 5¢ - Description of Making Needs Assessment Widely Available

In conjunction with EMHS, Eastern Maine Medical Center hosted a community forum to

pregsent an overview of local assegsment results and recommendations. Invitees

included: Other area hospitals, Physician leaders, Federally Qualified Health

Centers, Healthy Maine Partnerships, District ILiaisons linked to Maine €DC, Home

Health and long Term Care leaders, Social Serwvice Agencies, lLeaders of the tribal
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Supplemental Information

1

2

w

Y
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Complete this part to provide the following information.

Requlired descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7, Part Ii; Part lIl, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, iGe, 17e, 18e, 15¢, 194, 20d, 21, and 22.

Needs assessment, Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for agsistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy,

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of communitK health. Provide any other information impertant to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other
health care facilities furtner its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, ete.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoling the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. if applicable, identify all states with which the organization, of a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

Facility reporting group(s). If applicabte, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section g, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5e, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 16e, 17e, 18e, %c, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

Part V, Line 5c - Description of Making Needs Assessment Widely Available (continued)

comminities, Business leaders, Legislative leaders, Representatives of the State

administration

Attendees were provided an executive summary of the assessment as well as a sumpmary

table of data reflective of the service area. A presentation was made by EMHS staff

who were members of the assessment development steering committee providing selected

data results, trends over time and the priorities and recommendations as suggested

by the research consultants.

In addition to the community forums, the entire statewide assessment (both narrative

and data sets) were posted to the EMHS website. After the forums, Power Point

presentations used at the Forum as well as input collected in the breakout sessions

were also posted on the website. Forum participants were encouraged to go to the

website to review the assessment in detail, and access the data for local planning.

Media releases were also sent to local news outlets in combination with the forums,

encouraging new articles on the forum and inviting all members of the public teo view

the report on the website.

Instructions on the website assist viewers to download and /or print sections of the

report. Individuals without computer or printer access were provided a phone number

where they can request a printed assessment

BAA
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B Supplemental Information '
Complete this part to provide the following information.
1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part I1; Part |ll, lines 4, 8, and Sb; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12k, 14g, 16e, 17¢, 18¢, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.
2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons whe may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy,

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves,

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facifities or other
health care facilities further Its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. |f the or?anézation is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promofi

ing the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
cemmunity benefit report.

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section %, lines 1f, 3, 4, bc, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e¢, t1)}90, 19d, 204, 21, and 22.

Part V, Line 61 - Describe Other Needs ldentified

6a Fastern Maine Medical Center plans to meet the prioritized needs through the

following initiatives and resources:

6b Continued sponsorship and mentoring of the Wellness Council of Maine—EMMC is the

regional sponscor of this initiative that brings wellness c¢oaching and initiatives

into the workplace

6c The Bangor Beaccn Community, a three vear grant, ended in March 2012. The federal

grant brought together a variety of care providers and stakeholders in the

community and was the foundation of EMHS becoming a Pioneer Accountable Care

Organization, one of 33 in the country. We are able to provide better coordinate

care, educate consumers, encourage earlier access to medical care and better

management of chronic disease with the goal of a healthier population and reduced

use of emergency intervention to even more people in our community as a result of

our continued efforts and success.

6d Ongoing work in our primary care provider offices (all of which are patient

centered medical homes) with regard to ceoaching on primary prevention of at risk

populations and care management for secondary prevention in those with chronic

disease. Integration of Mental Health/Substance Abuse services into primary care

setting. Expanding use of care coordinators to ocur own EMMC employees and Medicare

patietnt in accordance with demonstrated success of the Pioneer Accountable Care
BAA TEEA3808L 12/29/12 Schedule H (Form 880} 2012
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Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the following information.

1

2

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part ll; Part [l}, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1}, 3, 4, 5c, 6, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B. '

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

Commumity information. Describe the community the organization serves, teking info account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of communitﬁ health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilifies or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community {e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.). -

Affiliated healih care system. If the crganization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served,

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
commuinity benefit report.

Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section %, lines 1j, 3, 4, %c, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h,p!4g, 169?178, 18e, t?é)c,p19d, Dgcli, 2 ,gnd 22. P q

Part V, Line 6i - Describe Other Needs ldentified (continued)

Organization.

be Ongoing efforts to recruit as well as fund the Family Practice Residency Program

{about half those who complete this program choose to set up practice here in the

region). Increase family practice provider options in the community, including

opening a new office in Hampden, acquiring an established primary care practice in

Banger and recruiting additional primary care practitioners to our region.

6f Continue to develop and grow the Way to Optimum Weight (WOW) Program for children

with obesity related illness. This four year old program is showing significant

promise in introducing sustainable behavior change in children with obesity.

6g Breakout #1 - Access, Quality and Effectiveness

»Access to clinic and coaching services in the workplace

*Tethering resources to primary care, more collaboration, more consistency in

the models ugsed in primary care settings

Consumer “triage” problematic, knowing when to use primary care and when to

access Walk In or Emergency

+leverage electronic medical record systems to connect providers, increase

continuity

+Increase preventive care compliance among men

+Need additional primary care physicians in region

BAA
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: Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part |l; Part i, lines 4, 8, and Sb; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 61, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e¢, 19¢, 19d, 204, 21, and 22,

2 Needs assessment, Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy,

4 Community information, Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the gecgraphic area and demegraphic
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promeoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system, If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the heatth of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, t7e, 18s, %c, 19d, 204, 2{), and 22.

Part V, Line 6i - Describe Other Needs ldentified (continued)

*Episodes of care must link back to patient’s medical home

Breakout #2 - Chronic Disease

*TIncreased community conversation about chronic disease and management

resources

*Increased education of physician community reqgarding resources

*Better management in community settings will decrease hospitalizations and

improve CHNA results next time

*Health literacy and prevention education

Breakout #3 - Mental Health and Substance Abuge

*Qver prescribing of medications /use “small volume” prescriptions

Increased coordination of mental health/substance abuse treatment, including

coaching/care management for relapse prevention

+Increased capacity to detox patients

Breakout #4 - Prevention, QObesity
BAA TEEA3B08L. 122912 Schedule H (Form 990) 2012
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Supplemental information

Compilete this part to provide the following information.

1

2

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part ll; Part lll, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1), 3, 4, 5c¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14qg, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22,

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance pclicy,

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of communitf\: health. Provide any other information Important to describing hiow the organization's hospital facilities or other
health fare facilities f)urt er its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community {e.q., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, eic.).

Affiliated health care ?fystem. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.,

State flling of community benefit report. if applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report,

Factlity reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital faciiity in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
fPart V, Section g, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h,p!4g, 16&1?’?7e, 18e, %C,pwd, Otg:l, 21, gnd 22, P k

Part V, Line 6i - Describe Other Needs Identified (continued)

*Online rescurce for providers needed

‘Multifaceted approach

*Need to decrease youth obesity rates/prevention is key

Part V, Line 7 - Explanation of Needs Not Addressed and Reasons Why

+Increase capacity for detox, because other organizations in the community,

including Acadia Hospital have taken on that responsibility and we need to aveid

duplication.

+Pavment reform was mentioned several times in these group discussions, and

though EMMC can adwvocate for changes in the payment structure to support primary and

secondary prevention, and participate in collaborative efforts like the Bandgor

Beacon Community and development of Accountable Care Organizationg, this is not a

need that we can address on our own

Part V, Line 14g - Other Means Hospital Facility Publicized the Policy

13¢g. Posted signs and individual notices containing information on the availability

of free care are located in key public areas in the hospital. Signs and notices

inform the patient of the availlability of free care and include eligibility

criteria, instructions on how to apply and how to obtain additional information or

assistance. The "Billing Help" section of the hospital web pages provides a link to

the free care application form, instructions and eligibility criteria

BAA
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Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part [, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Ii; Part Iil, Iines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section 8, lines 1], 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 16e, 176, 189, 19¢, 19d, 20d 21, and 22.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition te any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the atrganization's
financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking intc account the geographic area and demographic
constijuents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.qg., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, efc.).

6 Afifiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report,

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reportin grou provide the descriptions required for
Part ,Sectiong lines tj, 3 4%0 6i, 7 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 18e, 17e, 18s, tlygc 19d, 20d, 2 , and 22,

Part V, Line 20d - Other Billing Determination of Individuals Without Insurance

19d. Hospital charges are discounted at 100% for patients who qualify for free care

with income at or below 200% FPL. The hospital alsco offers a partial discount for

patients who fall within the 201% to 300% FPL.

Part VI - Needs Assessment

The EMHS Community Health Needs Assessment examines the health status of the

residents of Bangor and Penobscot, counties and provides comprehensive research data

and recommendations on a variety of critical target areas including community health

education, access to primary care, care for chronic conditions, geriatric care, and

mental health and substance abuse. As a follow up to the studies conducted in 2001

and 2007, EMHS contracted with the Center for Health Policy, Planning and Research

(CHPPR) at the University of New England (led by Ron Deprez, PhD. MPH) to determine

changes in health status and barriers to care since 2001. The 2007 Community Health

Needs Assessment was funded again as a community service of EMHS Foundation, the

philanthropic center of EMHS. EMHS participated in another Community Health Needs

assessment in late 2010. Those results were made available in 2011, and in late June

of 2011, EMMC, as a member of EMHS, hosted a community health needs assessment forum

at the Spectacular Event Center in Bangor so community leaders and public health

officials could discuss a collaborative effort to best address the needs of

residents in Penobscot County. EMMC alsco had representatives at several other
BAA TEEA3808L 12/29112 Scheduie H (Form 930) 2012
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Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, ang 7; Part II; Part ili, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14qg, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 194, 20d, 21, and 22,

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be

billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's

financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community heaith. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other

health care facilities further its exempt purpase by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use

of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoling the heaith of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a retated organization, files a
community benefit report.,

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
F’art\t),’Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, i7e, 18, llch, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

w

[+

~l

Part VI - Needs Assessment (continued)

community forums since we serve as the leading tertiarv referral center for the

northern two-thirds of the state. Im 2013, we continued the implementation of the

strategies developed in that process.

Patt V1 - Patient Education of Eligibility for Assistance

Financial assistance or free care is available only for medically necessary

services. Posters are displayed in patient care areas, information and forms are

available online on the hospital website, and patient billinag representatives are

also available to answer guestions and take calls.

Part VI - Community Information

EMMC is a comprehensive, 411-bed medical center serving the greater Bangor area and

the northern two thirds of Maine. The medical center and its medical staff of more

than 400 physicians provide three-quarters of the primary-care hospital services

offered in the Bangor area, as well as specialty and intensive services for patients

from Waterville to the Canadian border. EMMC also provides outreach clinics to many

local hospitals in the region, allowing easier access for patients and supporting

the role of those hospitals in their communities. EMMC is an American College of

Surgeons verified Level IT trauma center, bariatric center, community cancer center

and host of Lifeflight of Maine, a statewide medical helicopter service that

transports critically ill and injured patients. EMMC is also a Joint Commission
BAA TEEA3808L 1242912 Schedule H (Form 990) 2012




Schedule H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8
; Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the following information.
1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part |I; Part lll, lines 4, 8, and Sb; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1], 3, 4, B¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16, 17e, 18¢, 19¢, 19d, 204, 21, and 22.
2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
bilied for patlent care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of c_o_mmunitx health. Provide any other information impertant to describing how the organization's hespital facilities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community {e.g., open medical staff, community board, use

of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its afiiliates in promoeting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section %, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 61, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e, %c, 19d, 204, 2{), and 22,

[-2]

~J

Part VI - Community Information (continued)

certified Joint Center and Stroke Center.

In the Community Health Needs Assessment for EMHS, it states:

1) Penobscot County has the highest percentage of females in anv countv with no

medical checkup in the past two vears

2) Penobscot County has the highest percentage of ohese residents of any county

3) Penobscot County has a low percentage of males 50+ who've received a prostate

exam within the past two vyears

Patt VI - Community Building Activities

EMMC's Wellness Services offers a wide variety of health and wellness programs

designed to improve the lifestyvles of people in the Bangor area. The dqeal is to

support families, and communities to live healthier lives. Through these programs,

EMMC promotes and provides guidance for healihv lifestyles and the prevention of

disease. Trained and certified staff work with area organizations, empleoyers, vyouth

and the community at large, to help determine health needs through health risk

appraisals, culture and interest surveys, and/or other data as available. Education,

screenings, health coaching, training and collaboration with all resources within

Eastern Maine Medical Center and EMHS are provided to meet the community or

individual business needs. EMMC continues tec be committed to investing in Maine's
BAA TEEA3S0SL 12/29/12 Schedule H {Form 990) 2012




Schedule H (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8
Subpiemental Information '
Complete this part to provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part [t; Part [Il, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1}, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 169, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 194, 20d, 21, and 22.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments raported in Part V, Section B,

3 Patlent education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local gevernment programs or under the organization's
tfinancial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves,

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important fo describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other
h?alth fareiufagilitiets f)urther its exempt purpose by premoting the health of the community (e.q., open medical staff, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective rolss of the
organizaticn and its affitiates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report,

8 Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14qg, 16e, 17g, 18e, %c, 19d, 204, 2{3, and 22.

Part Vi - Community Building Activities (continued)

future health through the Way to Optimal Weight (WOW) program for children -- a

program that cocaches children with morbid obesity to address their weight and

resulting other health issues,by improving eatindg and fitness habits, boosting self

esteem, and engaging in family coaching. EMMC also heosts a number of support groups

that provide education and a support system to our patients and their families

afflicted with certain illnesses and conditions

Part VI - Affiliated Health Care System Roles and Promotion

Using the data in the EMHS Community Health Needs Assessment, EMMC collaborates with

other EMHS hospitals and with others in the community on solutions to some of most

significant healthcare problems such as overcoming barriers accessing to care,

healthcare provider shortages, and obesity. EMMC is reaching out to providers

across the region to formulate strateqgies for better patient access to care,

including improved scheduling, aggressive recruliting of physicians, and enhanced

communication regarding care transitions. With the help of technology, such as

tele-trauma, specialists at our hospital are able to assist with traumas and

specialized clinical cases at other hospitals using high regolution, remote cameras

and communication equipment. With a shortage of healthcare providers in rural areas

of Maine, investments such as this are sharing specialty level medical and surgical

resources with rural communities, maximizing our region's ability to respond to
BAA TEEA3B08L  t2/29/12 Schedule H (Form 990) 2012




Schedule H (Form 890) 2012 Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8

Supplemental Information

Comp;lete this part to provide the following information.

1

2

3

o1

[+2]

~J

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part I1; Part llI, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17¢, 18¢, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section 8.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of communit% health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by prometing the health of the community {e.g., open medicai statf, community board, use
of surpius funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promating the health of the communitiss served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report,

Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part ¥V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17¢, 18e, %c, 19d, 20d, 2{), and 22.

Part VI - Affiliated Health Care System Roles and Promotion (continued)

medical needs and, when appropriate, supporting patient care closer to home.

Patt Vi - States Where Community Benefit Report Filed

ME

Part V - Explanation of Number of Facility Type

N/A

Additional Information

Part II, line 4 - Community Building Activities

Through public health screenings, professional and community education, and charity

care, EMMC, as a member of EMHS system, works hard to make a difference in our

comnunity. These “community benefits” reflect EMMC's nonprofit mission.

Eastern Maine Medical Center demonstrated its ongoing commitment to improving the

health status of Maine’s workforce by renewing its regional sponsorship of the

Wellness Council of Maine. Largely as a result of the work of this group, our region

was designated as the nation's first "Well Region™ with many employers qualifying as

"Well Workplaces™ under the Wellness Councils of America criteria. Having earned,

for the second time, the Wellness Councils of America’s Platinum Well Workplace Award

(Welcoa's highest honor), EMMC is investing both inside its own walls and outside to

BAA
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Schedule H (Form 980) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 8

Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the following information.

1

2

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Ii; Part lll, lines 4, 8, and 9b; and Part V,
Section A; and Part V, Section B, lines 1j, 3, 4, 5¢, 6i, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14g, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

Needs assessment, Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any needs
assessments reported in Part V, Section B,

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be
hilled for patient care about their eligibility for assislance under federal, state, or local government pregrarms or under the organization's
financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of communitﬁ health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or othar
health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promating the health of the community (e.g., cpen medical staif, community board, use
of surplus funds, etc.).

Aftiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify ail states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

Facility reporting group(s). If applicable, for each hospital facility in 2 facility reporting group provide the descriptions required for
Part V, Section g, lines 1J, 3, 4, 5¢, 61, 7, 10, 11, 12h, 14q, 168, 17e, 18g, ‘Iy90, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22.

Additional Information (continued)

promote healthy choices, healthy lifestyles, and lower healthcare costs. For FY2013,

EMMC delivered a total community benefit of more than $107.8 million.

BAA
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB No. 15450047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest

Compensated Employees

2012

Denartment of the Treasy ™ Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 23,
Internal Reverue Service > Attach to Form 920. ™ See separate instructions.

Name of the crganization

Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501

Employer identification number

Questions Regarding Compensation

1a Check the afi{)ropriate box(es? if the or?anization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form 930, Part

Vil, Section A, line 1a, Compiete Part ! to provide any relevant information regarding these items. Part III
D First-class or charter travel |:] Housing allowance or residence for personal use

D Travel for companichs |:| Payments for business use of perscnal residence

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments Health or social club dues or initiaticn fees

D Biscretionary spending account D Personal services (e.q., maid, chauifeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If 'No,’ complete Part 11l to explain,

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all officers, directors,

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filin%organization used to establish the compensation: of the organization's
CEO/Executive Director, Check alt that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEGQ/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ui,

Compensation commitiee Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
D Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization:

a Receive a severance payment or change-of-conbrol payment? . ... . o i i e e e e

If "Yes' to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each itermn in Part 1l Part IITE

Only section 501(c)3) and 501(c}¥4) organizations must complete lines 5-9,

5 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:

1 "Yes' to line 5a or 5b, describe in Part IlI.

6 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:

If 'Yes' to line 6a or 6b, describe in Part [,

7 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and &7 If *Yes,’ describe in Part IlI

................................................ 7 X
8 Waere any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a coniract that was subject
to the initial contract exceFtion described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a){3)7
I 'Yes, describe in Part [l .. o e 8 X
9 If 'Yes' to line 8, did the organizaticn also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
SEOHON 53800800 2. . . et e e e e e 9
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Schedule J (Form 990) 2012
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SCHEDULE L
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Daparknent of the Treasury
Iniernal Revenue Service

» Attach to Forim 990 or Form 990-EZ. ™ See separate instructions.

Transactions With Interested Persons

'Yes' on

> Comgtete if the organization answered

Form 99

Part WV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 28b, 28c,

or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40h.

OMB No, 1545-0047

Name of the organization Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC)

2012

Employer identification number

01-0211501

Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501(c)(@) organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered "Yes' on Form 990, Part [V, line 25a or 28b, or Form 980-EZ, Part V, line 40b.

(@) Name of disqualified person (b} Relaiionship between disqualified {c) Description of transaction (d) Corrected?
1 person and organization
Yes No
(1)
2)
3
1G]
(5)
3]
2 Enter the amount of fax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
SEClON 4008, . . L L e e e *3

3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization....................cveiis >3

Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Completa if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990-EZ, Page V., line 38a or Form 990, Part [V, line 26; or if the

organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22.
(a) Name of interested person \33}1%??&%2222}11 (c)ol;’tlg‘ggse (d)le‘;J;‘H H{g or ori r(lgpoalii%%ﬂunt (f) Balance due (0 In default? (Il;g’%%gggvgf ag?:ggt;?’q?

organization? committea?
Te Fram Yes No | Yes Ne | Yes No

(1) Wayne R. Watlerman, Ml
2) physicia X 40,000, 10, 983. X X1 X
(3) Ashley Robentson, MD
@ physicia X 113,654, 1,983, X X| X
(5)
®)
&)
)
®)

12, 966.

- Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.

(a) Name of interested person

(b) Relationship bebween interested person

and the organization

() Amount of assistance

{d) Type of Assistance

{e) Purpose of assistance

M

]

3

@

&)

(6)

%

®

©

(10)

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

TEEASS0IL 121112

Schedule L (Form 990 or 930-E2) 2012




Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (E 01-0211501 Page 2
Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested persan (b)Relationship between (c) Amount of {d) Description of fransaction (&) Sharing of
interested person and the {ransaction organization's
organization revenues?

Yes No
(1) Deborah C. Johnson officer=brd me 138,040, |nursing prog assis-Hus X
(2) Susan Dow fam mem of off 111,303, compensation X
(3 David L. Levy, MD trustee=25% ow 194,910. |prof srv-Northeast Nep )4
(4 Sheryl Winchester spouse of offi 99,936, compensation X
5) Mary M. Hood officer=board 215,951.| membership dues-MHA X
(6} Colette Sabbagh spouse of hd m 115,550. ceompensation X
 Helen Q. McKinnon officer=hd mem 971,845, condo fee expense X
®
@
(10)

Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ} 2012
TEEA4S01L 121112




SCHEDULE M

(Form 9920)

» Complete if the organizations answered "Yes'

Noncash Contributions

on Form 990, Part IV, lines 292 or 30,

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

» Attach to Form 990.

| OMB No. 1545.0047

Name of the organizalion g A stern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)
Eastern Maine Medical Centex

(EMMC)

Employer Identific
01-0211501

Types of Property

W0 SN O R W -

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
2]

23
24
25
26
27
28

Art—Worksofart .. .... ... .. ..ol
Art — Historical treasures. ............... ... ...
Art — Fractional interests . .....................
Books and publications........................
Clothing and househoeld goods.
Cars and other vehicles.
Boatsandplanes............ .. ... ... .
intelectual property. . ... oo
Secwrities — Publicly traded. ...................
Securities — Closely held stock. ............. ...
Securities — Partnership, LLC, or trust interests. .
Securities — Miscellaneous

Qualified conservation contribution —
Historic structures, ... i e n,

CQuialified conservation contribution — Other. .. ...
Real estate — Residential......................
Real estate — Commercial
Realestaie — Other...................oiinnnt
Collectibles. ... s
Foodinventory........... ...t
Drugs and medical supplies.............oo0at
Taxidermy. . ..o e
Historical artifacts, . ...... ... oot
Scientific specimens.
Archeological artifacts. ........................
Other™ Gee Part TT

Y.
Other™ ( ).,
)

Other»
Other™ ¢ )

a
Chfac)k it
applicable

(b
Number of
contributions or
items contributed

© (d)
Noncash contribution Method of determining

amounts reported
on Form 980,
Part VI, line 1g

7,050, |FMV

3,965, FMV

i2

17,186, (FMV

29

30a buring the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part [, fines 1-28 that it must
hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which is not required fo be used for exempt

32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell
MONCASH COM DU OF1S T o oottt et e e et e e e e e e e e

b If Yes,' describe in Part I,
33 If the organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which coiumn (a) is checked,

Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for which the

organization completed Form 8283, Part |V, Donee Acknowledgement...............

b If 'Yes,' describe the arrangement in Part L
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard coniributions? ... ...

describe in Part Il.

29

noncash contribution amounts

Yes

No

o

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 280,

TEEA4EDIL 1211012

Schedule M (Form 990) 2012




SChEdull?M(Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) 01-0211501 Page 2

4 1E| Supplemental information. Complete this part to provide the information required by Part |, lines 30b, 32b,
and 33, and whether the organization is reporting in Part |, column (b), the number of contrlbutuons the
number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

BAA, TEEA4B02L 12110712 Schedule M (Form 990) 2012




2012 Schedule M, Part Il - Supplemental Information Page 3
. Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC)

Client EMMC Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501
7108114 07:34AM

Sch M, Part |, Lines 25-28

Other Non-Cash Contributions

Revenue
Number of on Form 990, Method of
Description Appl? Contr, Part VIII Deter, Rev,

Gift Cards X 9 5 2,185, FMV

House X 1 2,000, FMV

Jewelry X 1 958, FMV

Wood Carving X 1 10,000, FMV

Toys X 2 548, FMV

Tote X 1 250, FMV

Canopies X 2 2,063, FMV

Hotel Stay X 1 1,000, FMV

Walk-kits X 1 1,635, FMV

Golf Lessons X 1 140. FMV

Domain Name X 1 60. FMV

Honorarium X 1 2,500. FMV

Tickets X 1 80. FMV

Picture X 1 150, FMV




SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ il

(Form 990 of 930-E2) 2012

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 890 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

i eraaea > Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ,
Name of the arganization Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) Employer [dentlfication number
Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

___Total admissions __________________ 21,230 _ __ __
__ _Percent Occupancy of Available Beds FA L T
Cardiac Catheterization Procedures 5,213

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Netice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. TEEA490IL  12/8712 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012 Page 2

Name of the organization EBastern Maine Healthcare SYS tems (EMMC) Employer identificalion number
Fastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

__ Cardiac surgery Cases  _ _ _ _________383 _ ______ ___ o ______
—__Emergency Room Visits _ . __________ 38,764 L _________
.. Medical Imaging Procedures _ ___ _____139,634 ________ ____________________
__Surgery Cases __ __ . . ________ 18,502 _ _ _ o _______._
__ Live Births  __  _ ______________L.648
___Family Practice Visits ____________ . 28,474 _ e _____
_..Total Outpatient Visits _______ .. 427,008 ____________ __ ____________

patient Days ____ 107,384

BAA Schedule O {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
TEEA4Q02L  12/8112




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012 Page 2

Name of the organization Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) Employer identification number
Fastern Maine Medical Center {(EMMC) 01-0211501

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
TEEA4902L 128712




Schedule O (Ferm 990 or 990-E2) 2012 Page 2

Name of lhe organization Eastern Maine Healthecare Systems (EMMC) Employer identification number
Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

Subsidized Health Services: $68,132

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012
TEEA4902L 1218112




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012 Page 2

Name of the arganization Fastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) Employer identification numher
Fastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

BAA Schedule © {Form 990 or 990-EZ7) 2012
TEEA4902L 12/8/12




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012 Page 2

Name af ke organization Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EWC) Employer identificalion number
Eastern Maine Medical Center {EMMC) 01-0211501

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012
TEEA4002L 121812




Schedule Q (Form 980 or $90-E2) 2012 Page 2

Mame of the organization Eastern Maine Healthcare Sys tens (EMMC) Employer identification number
Fastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012
TEEA4902L 1278712




Schedule O (Form 950 or 990-E2) 2012 Page 2

Name of the organization Eastern Maine Healthcare SYS tems (EMMC) Eraployer identification number
Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
TEEAQ02L 124812




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012 Page 2

Hame of the orgenizalion pastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) Employer identification number
Eastern Maine Medical Center {(EMMC) 01-0211501

BAA Scheduie O (Form 990 or $90-E7) 2012
TEEA4902L. 12/8012




2012 Schedule O - Supplemental Information Page 8
Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMNIC)

Client EMMC Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) 01-0211501

7122n4 09:34AM

Form 990, Part Xi, Line 9
Other Changes In Net Assets Or Fund Balances

Contribution To Strat Pool Per Affiliation Agreement..........................
Net Change in Funds Held at Affiliates...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.ns
Post Retirement Health Benefit FASISB ... . . . . . i,

$ =-4,775,612,
3,079,674,
12,785, 482.
1,000,

Total § 11,090,544,
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Schedule R Cont (Form 990) 2012 Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMMC) .Eastern Maine Medical Cen

01-0211501 Continuation Page 3 of 3
art Il Continuation of Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations
(A o B ) @) E) (F) (@)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code Public charity status Direct controlling Sec 512(h)(13)
] : of foreign country) section (if section 501(c)3)) entity controfled entity?
Yes No
Sebasticook Valley Work Health, LLC _
447 North Main Street
Pittsfield, ME 04%7 = Provide patient
45-335%44¢6 care ME 501 {c} (3} 3 SVH X
Restoration Health, LLC _______
43 Whiting HillRd____~~~ "7~ Mental &
Brewer, ME 04412 77— Behavioral
35-2449986 o Health Services ME 501 (c) (3) 9 AHT X

TEEAZ102L 1228112

Schedule R Cont (Form 990) 2012
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o 868 ~ Application for Extension of Time To File an

{Rev January 2013)- Exempt Organ ization Return OME Mo, 1545-1709
Eﬁep?nriarlnf?tg&-:;Jsgas-(rarr%?csem ‘bFilea separate application for each retum. _
& if you zre filing for an Autornatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Partl and check this box ... e =¥

@ If you are filing for an Additional (Not Automatic) 3-Monih Extension, complete only Part [l {on page 2 of this form}.
Do not complete Part lf unfess you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extention on a previously filed Form 8868.

Electronic filing (e-file), You can electronically file Form 8888 if you need 2 3-month automalic extension of fime to file (6 months for a
corporation required o file Form 990-T, or an additional (not atitornatic) 3-month extension of time. You can electronicatly file Form 8868 to
request an extension of tirme to file any of the forms listed in Part 1 or Parl Il with the exceplion of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers
Asscciated With Certain Persanal Benefit Contracts, which must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the
electronic filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/efile and click on e-file for Charitles & Nonprofits.

[ 45324 Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).
A corporation required to file Forrn 990-T and requesting an automatic 6-month extension — check this box and compiete Part tonly.... * D

All other corporations (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time le file
incorne tax returns. '

Enter filet's identifying number, see instructions

Name of exemnpt organization or other filer, see instructions. . Employer ienfificalion number (EIN) or
Type or 7
print ] ,
. Eastern Maine Medical Center 01-0211501
File by the . Number, stroet, ard room of sulle number, f a P.O. box, see instructions. Social security number (SSN)
due dat
diedletor |p 0, Box 404, 489 State Street
return. See City, town or post office, slate, and ZIE cove. For a foreign address, see instructions.
instruclions,

Bangor, . ME 04402-0404
Enter the Relurn code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each returm) ..o
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code |lsFor Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 290-T {corporation) a7
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 09
Form 990-PF ‘ 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (section 401(a) or 408{a) trust) 05 Form 6069 "

" Form 9%0-T {trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

Telephone No. > (207) 9737894 _____ FAXNo. > (207) 973-7138 _____
@ If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this bOX. ..o > D
If this is for 2 Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemnption Number (GEN) 5247 . If this is for the whole group,
check this box ..... > D . If it is for part of the group, check this box... > and attach a list with ihe names and EINs of all members
the extension is for. Fastern Maine Medical Center 01-0211501
T I request an automatic 3-rmonth (6 months for a corporation requiired io file Form 990-T) exlension of time
uniil  5/15 - 2014 .t file the exempt organization return for the organization named above.
The extension is for the organization's retum for:
- D calendar year 20  or
b tax year beginning _9_/_3_0*__‘. 20 12 ., and ending _2/_2§H__ 200 13 .
2 | the tax yzar entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: Dlnitial return DFinaI return

DChange in accounting period

3a If this application is for Form 990-BL, 990-PF, 990.T, 4720, or 6063, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits. See instructions . ... . ... ..+ e 3aj$ 0.

b I this application is for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enler any refundable credits and estimated tax
payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as acredit, ..o .o e 3b|8 0,

¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by using
EFTPS (Elecironic Federal Tax Payment Systern), See ISHFUCHOMS, o\ vt v e it enean ey 3c|$ 0.

Caution, If you are geing to make an electronic fund withdrawal with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-E0 and Form 8879-EC for
payment instructions.

BAA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions, Form 8868 (Rev 1-20%3)
FIFZ05011. 01/21413




Form 8868 (Rev 1-2013) ' Page 2
® If you are filing for an Additional {Not Automatic) 3- Month Extension, complete only Part Il and check thisbox ..., >
Note. Only complete Part || if you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a prewously filed Form 8868 '

o If you are flllng for an Automatic 3~Month Extension, complete oniy Panl {on page 'I)

Enter filer's ldent1fying number. see |nstructions

MName of exempl organization or other filer, see insiructions. Employer identification number {FIN} or
Type or : | -
print Eastern Maine_ Medical Center 01-0211501 -

Number, street, and room or sulte number, If a P.O. box, see instructiors. Social securily number (S5N)
File by the . . . .
exiended
due daie for
filing yaur P.0, Box 404, 480 State Street
ifgéut;rﬂléi%%i. Gity, town or post office, stale, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.

Banqor, ME 04402-0404
Enter the Return code for the return that this application is for {file a separate application for each return) ...........................
Application Return ]Application . ' : ‘ Return
Is For Code [{isFor Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 : T Sl R R
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041 -A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 ’ ] 09
Form 99¢-PF ’ 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (section 401{a) or 408(a) frust} . 05 Form 6065 : N
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

STOP! Do not complete Part Il if you were not already granted an automafic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868.

Telephone No, »  (207) _9_7_3_7_82& _____ FAXNo. » (207) 973-713%_ __ __.
* |f the organization does noi have an office or place of business in the United States, checkthisbox. ... i >
* |f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization’s four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN).... 5247 . If this is for the

whole group, check this box... * D . If it is for part of the group, check this box » and attach a [ist with the names and EINs of all
members the extension js for. Eastern Maine Medical Center 01-2115K01

4 | request an additienal 3-month extension of time until _8/15 20 14
5 For calendar year ____aor other tax year beginning _9/30_ o , 20 12. and ending _9/28 20 13.
6 |If the tax year entered in line 5 is for less than 12 months, check reason: D inifial return |:| Final return

Change in accounting period
7 State in detail why you need the extension... Taxpayer respectfully_reguests additional time to

8a If this application is for Form 990:BL, 990-PF, 990 T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits. See e 1 DT T Bal$

=

b If this appfication is for Form 980-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and estimated tax £
payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credlt and any amount paid previously ='3=!?»
W FOPI BB, o1\ttt et ettt et it ettt et e en e e teba e an e e s e ety a ety a et h e ety 8h|%

c Balance due. Subtract line 8b from line 8a. Include 5your payment with this form, if required, by using
EFTPS (Electronlc Federal Tax Payment System), See instructions. . .. vve i iieeieisieniiiiiieens Bc|3

Signature and Verification must be completed for Part I only

—.-—UndeLl&r)%mes of parjury, | declare that | have exarmined s form, including accompanying schedules and stalements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is frue,
correcl, @

. ~camplete, and that | am authorized to prepare th(furm -
Signature ™ m}\ /%’ Z" Treasurer S Dale ™ 5}5 /}q
r

BAA. — / — FIFZOS02L 01421113 . Form 8868 (Rev 1-2013)
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Lol Department of Treasury Notice (P211A
$ Internat Revenue Service Tax period September 30, 2013

Ogden UT 84201 Notice date March 31, 2014

Employer ID number  01-0211501

To contact us Phone 1-877-829-5500
FAX 801-620-5670

050939.427045.68166.4886 1 AT 0.406 370 Page 1 of 1
N O R A I TR R TR

EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
EASTERN MAINE MEDICAL CENTER

489 STATE ST

BANGOR ME 04401-6616

Important information about your September 30, 2013 Form 990

We approved your Form 8868, Applicatibn for Extension of Time To
File an Exempt Organization Return

We approved the Form 8868 for your What you need to do
September 30, 2013 Form 990.

Your new due date is May 15, 2014, File your September 30, 2013 Form 990 by May 15, 2014, We encourage you to use

electionic filing—the fastest and easiest way to file.

Visit www.irs.gov/charities to learn about approved e-Fite providers, what types of
returns can be filed electronically, and whether you are required to file electronically.

Additional information * Visit www.irs.gov/cp211a.

« For tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit www.irs.gov or call
1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).
» Keep this notice for your records,

If you need assistance, please don't hesitate to contact us.
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118881

Department of Treasury Notice CP211A
internal Revenue Service Tax period September 30, 2013

IRS Ogden UT 8420t Notice date June 23, 2014
' Employer ID number  (1-0211501
To contact us Phone 1-877-829-5500

FAX 801-620-5670

118881.455537,103111.8144 1 a8 0.406 170 Page 1 of 1
bl lptife ol feogppeprgeegpe el byl Rl

EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS

EASTERN MAINE MEDICAL CENTER

489 STATE ST
BANGOR ME '04401-6616

Important information about your September 30, 2013 Form 990
We approved your Form 8868, Application for Extension of Time To
File an Exempt Organization Return

We approved the Form 8868 for your What you need to do
Septamber 30, 2013 Form 990.

Your new due date is August 15, 2014, File your September 30, 2013 Form 990 by August 15, 2014, We encourage you to

use electronic fiting—the fastest and easiest way to file.

Visit www.irs.gov/charities to leain about approved e-File providers, what types of
returns can be filed electronically, and whether you are required to file electronically.

Additional information o Visit www.irs.govicp2 11a.
s For tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit www.irs.gov or call
1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).
* Keep this notice for your records.

H you need assistance, please don't hesitate to contact us.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems
Brewer, Maine

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Eastern Maine Healthcare
Systems, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We did not audit the 2012 financial statements of Sebasticook Valley Health and Subsidiaries,
Eastern Maine HomeCare, and The Aroostook Medical Center and Subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Other Consolidated Entities”), whose statements reflect total assets constituting 11% of consolidated
total assets as of September 29, 2012 and total revenue constituting 15% of consolidated total revenue
for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Other Consolidated
Entities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audits in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Bangor, ME + Portland, ME s Manchaster, NH ¢ Charloston, WV
www.barrydunn,com




Board of Directors
Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems
Brewer, Maine

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the consoclidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems as of September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, and the
consolidated results of its operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary consolidating information, as identified in the table of contents, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial position, results of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows of the individual entities. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, based on our audits and the
reports of other auditors, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

3&%3 Daenn MeNecl | Porder, LLC

Portland, Maine
December 20, 2013




EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

ASSETS

{Dollars in thousands)

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted
Patient and frade accounts receivable - less allowance for
uncoliectible accounts of $43,295 in 2013 and $41,441in 2012
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other receivables
Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT — Net

NONCURRENT ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED OR
RESTRICTED:
Internally designated by the Board of Directors:
Funded depreciation
Other designated funds
Self-insurance and other funds held by trustees
Temporarily donor-restricted
Permanently donor-restricted

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts

Total noncurrent assets whose use is limited or restricted

OTHER ASSETS:
Estimated seftlements receivable from the State of Maine
Deferred financing costs

Intangibles and other assets
Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2013 2012
57,903 § 72,985
14,599 7,929
46,781 27,254

104,108 86,525
10,896 11,174
12,047 6,673
11,289 9,741
17,636 18,296

275,258 240,577

374,852 338,064

201,706 128,648

105,519 95,403

206,536 57,050
36,530 32,599
13,066 12,609
10,852 10,217

574,209 336,726
21,604 109,448

2,755 1,006
20,922 14,920
45,281 125,464

$ 1,269,601 § 1,040,831

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

{Dollars in thousands)

013 201
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 51,691 $ 41,304
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 76,041 68,052
Estimated third-party payor settlements 30,158 34,955
Line-of-credit borrowings 58 11,625
Current portion of long-term deht 12,246 10,327
Current portion of accrual for self-insurance 10,442 6,734
Total current liabilities 180,636 172,997
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt — net of current portion 311,308 152,788
Accrual for self-<insurance and postretirement benefits 137,949 149,641
Estimated third-party payor settlements 38,948 47,518
Other liabilities 4,557 6,058
Total noncurrent liabilities 492,762 356,005
Total liabilities 673,398 529,002
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 2, 5, 6, 7, 11 and 16)
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted 535,278 456,070
Temporarily restricted 36,530 32,599
Permanently restricted 23,918 23,026
Total controlled net assets 595,724 511,695
Unrestricted-noncontrolling interest 479 134
Total net assets 596,203 511,829

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,269,601 $ 1,040,831




EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

{Dollars in thousands)

2013 2012
REVENUE:
Patient service revenue {net of contractual allowances
and discounts) $ 10068662 976,893
Less provision for bad debts 46,029 40,202
Net patient service revenue 960,633 936,691
Sales and contract revenue 25,023 25,101
Other revenue 38,758 44 553
Net assets released from resfrictions — operations 2104 2,845
Total revenue 1,026,518 1,009,190
EXPENSES:
Compensation and employee benefits 608,505 578,085
Supplies and other 329,213 323,419
Depreciation and amortization 42,500 40,341
Interest 7,027 8,020
Total expenses 988,245 949,865
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE GAINS AND LOSSES 38,273 58,325
OTHER GAINS (LOSSES).
Income tax benefit 414 1,175
Joint venture income (loss) 38 (2,806)
fnvestment income and other — net 9,615 2,798
Total other gains (losses) — net 10,067 1,167
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND GAINS OVER EXPENSES
AND LOSSES BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 48,340 60,492
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15,264 824
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND GAINS OVER EXPENSES
AND LOSSES §3,604 61,316
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST (23) 3
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND GAINS OVER EXPENSES
AND LOSSES - CONTROLLING INTEREST 63,581 61,318
QTHER CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Net assets released from restrictions — capital acquisitions 4,394 1,459
Change in net unrealized gains {losses) on invesiments (5,480) 5,033
Net transfers to restricted funds - (5)
Pension and postretirement plan-related adjustments 16,711 5,048
INCREASE [N UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS $ 79,206 $ 72,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

{Dollars in thousands)

NET ASSETS — September 24, 2011

Excess of revenue and gains over expenses and losses
Noncontrolling interest
Restricted contributions
Mef assets released from restrictions:
Capital acquisitions
Operations
Restricted investment income and realized net gains
Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Net transfers
Pensicn and postretirement plan-related adjustiments

Increase (decrease) in net assets
NET ASSETS — September 29, 2012

Excess of revenue and gains over expenses and losses
Noncentrolling interest
Noncontrolling paid-in capital
Restricted coniributions
Net assets released from restrictions:
Capital acquisitions
Operations
Restricted investment income and realized net gains
Change in net unrealized gains cn investments
Net fransfers
Pension and posiretirement plan-related adjustments

Increase in net assets

NET ASSETS — Septemnber 28, 2013

Controlled Temporarily Permanently Totai Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Controlled Noncontrofling
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Interest

$ 383,216 § 27,385 $ 21,286 $ 431,887 3 137

61,316 - - 61,316 -
3 - - 3 (3)

- 4,877 762 65,639 -

1,469 (1,469) - - “

- (2,845) - (2,845) -

- 443 - 443 -

5,033 4,274 897 10,204 -

(5} {76) 81 - -

5,048 - - 5,048

72,854 5,214 1,740 79,808 {3)
456,070 32,500 23,026 511,695 134

63,604 - - 63,604 -
(23) - - {23) 23
- - - - 322

- 8,756 164 6,920 -

4,394 (4,394) - - -

- (2,104) - (2,104) -

- 5,622 - 5,622 -

{5,480) {1,888) 667 (6,701) -

{61) 61 - -

16,711 - - 16,711 -
79,208 3,931 892 84,029 345
§ 535,276 $ 36,630 $ 23,918 $ 595,724 $ 479

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)
2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in net assels $ 84,374 $ 79,805
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 42,500 40,341
Provision for bad debts 44,944 42,430
t.oss on extinguishment of debt 48 180
Loss on sale of property and equipment 1,179 117
Gain on sale of joint venture - (131}
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments {10,871) (15,164)
Equity in {earnings) losses of joint ventures (38) 2,806
Adjustment to fair value of equity in net assets of acquired affiliates 114 -
Changes in funded status of postretirement benefit plans (16,711) (5,048)
Restricted contributions {6,920) (5,639)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient and trade accounts receivable (61,952) {50,398)
Other current assels (997) (7,145}
Other assets {1,865) (1,280)
Estimated third-party payor settlements 74,753 {24,270)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities 11,392 15,089
Accrual for self-insurance and postretirement benefits 8,727 {(1,593)
Net cash provided by operating activities 168,677 70,100
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (81,166} (38,975)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 2,294 156
Proceeds from distributions of equity of joint ventures 535 1,078
Proceeds from sale of joint venture - 501
Investment in joint ventures {1,005) (1,675)
Purchases of investments (213,915) (103,235)
Proceeds from sales of investments 125,610 101,868
Net changes in money market investments (170,993) (1,893)
Net cash used by investing activities (338,640) (43,174)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt 163,271 135
Repayment of long-term debt {11,907) (10,731)
Proceeds from lines-of-credit 11,101 2,100
Repayment of lines-of-credit {17,610) (5,100)
Payment of bond issuance costs {1,814) (79)
Restricted contributions and investment income 12,542 6,082
Increase in pledges receivable restricted for long-term purposes {702) (289)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 154,881 (7,882)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {15,082) 19,044
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year 72,985 53,941
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year $ 57,903 § 72,985

Cash pald for interest approximated $10,445 and $8,789 for the years ended September 28, 2013
and September 29, 2012, respectively.
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS:
The System entered into capital leases in the amount of approximately $472 and $94 during the years ended
September 28, 2013 and Septemnber 29, 2012, respectively, related to the acquisitions of equipment.

The System refinanced $2,643 and $5,772 of tax-exempt bonds during the years ended September 28, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

1. Organization and Business

Eastern Maine Healthcare Systems (EMHS) is the parent company in an integrated health care
delivery system (the System). EMHS controls its subsidiaries by means of stock ownership or
corporate membership. The System provides a broad range of health care and related services to
nine Northern and Eastern Maine counties through subsidiary and affiliated corporations, limited
liability companies, and partnerships.

The primary function of EMHS is to provide overall coordination and direction for the activities of the
following corporations. Each affiliated organization is a tax-exempt charitable organization, unless
otherwise noted.

Acadia Hospital Corp. (Acadia) — Acadia operates a 100-bed acute care, psychiatric, and
chemical dependency hospital located in Bangor, Maine. Acadia is the sole corporate member of
Acadia Healthcare, Inc. (AHI). AHI is a provider of substance abuse and community integration
services. Meadow Wood, LLC and Restoration Health, LLC, are wholly-owned subsidiaries of AHI
that provides outpatient mental health services in Bangor, Maine.

Affiliated Healthcare Systems (AHS) — AHS, a taxable holding company, is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of EMHS. AHS has several subsidiaries and is a member in several joint venture limited
liability companies.

The following are wholly-owned subsidiaries of AHS:

Affifiated Laboratory, Inc. (AL} — ALl provides medical laboratory services to various System
companies, physicians, and other health care providers throughout Northern New England. ALI
cperates medical laboratories in Bangor and Portland, Maine.

Affiliated Materiel Services (AMS) — AMS is a multistate distributor of medical and other
supplies to various System companies, physicians' offices, and other health care organizations.
AMS also provides consulting services in materials management.

Affiliated Healthcare Management {(AHM) — AHM provides various services to businesses
throughout Northern New England. These services include workforce training, employee
assistance programs, web design solutions, and other services to hospitals and other health
care organizations, including System companies.

Affiliated Colfections, Inc. (ACI} — ACI provides debt collection services to commercial
businesses, municipalities, and health care clients, including System companies. As of April
2013, services are provided by a new joint venture Advanced Coliection Services, LLC in which

AHS is 50% owner.

Aliiance Health Documentation, LLC (AHD) — AHD began operations July 2013 and provides
transcription services in which AHS is 51% owner.
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Dirigo Pines Retirement Communily, LLC (DPRC) — The purpose of DPRC is to construct a
cooperative retirement housing community in Orono, Maine.

M Drug, LLC (M Drug) — Doing business as Miller Drug, M Drug operates four retail pharmacies
in Bangor and Brewer, Maine. AHS owned 50% of M Drug. On May 17, 2013, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AHS acquired the remaining 50% of M Drug. At the date of the acquisition, the fair
value of AHS’s 50% equity position was $247,000. AHS recognized a gain of $1,375,000 as a
result of re-measuring the fair value of M Drug, including previously recorded estimated
obligations under the joint venture agreement. This gain is included in Investment Income and
other — net. The fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities was determine using a cost
approach for property and equipment and an income approach for customer lists and lease
arrangements. The income approach used converted estimated future earnings and cash flows
to a single present value to indicate current fair value. The weighted average cost of capital was
12.5%.

The fair value of each major class of assets and liabilities was as follows (dollars in thousands):

Assets
Current assets $ 7,484
Equipment and leasehold improvements 722
Customer lists 3,100
Other assets 70
Total assets 11,376
Liabilities
Current liabilities 9,632
Long-term debt 1,250
Net fair value of entity $____ 494

Meridian Mobile Heafth, LLC (Meridian) — Meridian is a limited liability company providing
ground medical transportation services.

Beacon Health, LI.C (Beacon) — Beacon contracts with payors to provide poputation health
management service and care coordination. EMHS holds a 93% ownership in Beacon.

Blue Hill Memorial Hospital (BHMH) — BHMH operates a 25-bed, critical access hospital located
in Blue Hill, Maine.

Charles A. Dean Memorial Hospital (C.A. Dean) — C.A. Dean operates a 25-bed critical access
hospital and skilled care facility in Greenville, Maine and has family and specialty practices in
Greenville, Monson, and Sangerville.

Eastern Maine HomeCare (EMHC) — EMHC provides home health, hospice, telehealth, and
community health services to residents in Central, Northern, and Eastern Maine.
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Eastern Maine Medical Center (EMMC) — EMMC operates a regional 411-bed acute care
medical center located in Bangor, Maine, which provides a variety of inpatient and ambulatory
health care services. EMMC is the sole corporate member of the following subsidiaries:

Eastern Maine Medical Center Auxiliary (EMMCA) — EMMCA raises funds to benefit EMMC.

Norumbega Medical Specialists, Ltd. (Norumbega) — Norumbega operates a physician practice
in Crono, Maine.

EMHS Foundation {The Foundation) — The Foundation holds and manages unrestricted and
donor-restricted funds for the benefit of various System companies and other exempt organizations
in Maine. The amount of assets held for the benefit of unrelated organizations is not material.

The Foundation owns 50% of the stock in New England Home Health Care, a Bangor-based home
health care company, providing services throughout Central and Eastern Maine.

Inland Hospital (Inland) — Inland operates a 48-bed hospital located in Waterville, Maine. Inland
is the scle member of Lakewood Continuing Care Center (Lakewood). Lakewocod operates a 105-
bed long-term care facility.

Maine Institute for Human Genetics and Health (MIHGH) — MIHGH operates as a medical
research laboratory focusing on the chronic diseases that are prevalent in Maine with special
emphasis on cancer. :

Maine Network for Health (MNH) — MNH is a provider-owned service organization that offers
administrative, clinical, and quality support services to physician practices and hospitals. Several
System hospitals collectively own the majority of MNH and, accordingly, MNH has been included in
the System's consolidated financial statements. MNH is a taxable corporation.

Rosscare — Rosscare provides or supports a continuum of nonacute health care services,
including a personal emergency response program, a telephone reassurance program, geriatric
nurse consultation and education, and a continuing care infarmation center. Rosscare is the sole
shareholder of Rosscare Nursing Homes, Inc. (RNHI} and is the sole member of Dirigo Pines Inn,
LLC (DPI}:

RNHI — RNHI is a 50% partner in five separate partnerships, each of which owns and operates
a nursing home. On a combined basis, the nursing homes offer 293 long-term care beds, 40
assisted fiving units, 38 specialized care beds, and a 36-bed Alzheimer unit to the residents of
Central Maine.

DPi — DPI is a limited liability company formed for the construction and operation of an
apartment-style retirement community in Orono, Maine. DPI offers 22 specialized care beds, a
27-bed Alzheimer unit, 56 independent living units, and 17 assisted living units.

Sebasticook Valley Health {(SVH) — SVH operates a 25-bed critical access hospital located in
Pittsfield, Maine.
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The Aroostook Medical Center (TAMC) and Subsidiaries — TAMC operates a community
hospital with 89 beds and a nursing home with 72 beds. TAMC has the following subsidiaries:

TAMC Title Corporation — TAMC Title Corporation is a real estate holding company that owns
buildings that are leased to various health care-related organizations.

TAMC Endowments — TAMC Endowments is responsible for raising, holding, and managing
contributions received from donors for the benefit of TAMC and its subsidiaries.

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of EMHS and its
controlled affiliates. The consolidated financial statements include 100% of the assets and liabilities
of majority-owned subsidiaries. Significant infercompany accounts and transactions among the
affiliated organizations have been eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
The assets of any member of the consolidated group may not be available to meet the obligations
of other members in the group, except as disclosed in Note 9.

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year for the majority of the System organizations ends on the last Saturday in September.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (generally accepted
accounting principles) in accordance with the American Institute of Cerlified Public Accountants'
Audit and Accounting Guide, Health Care Organizations, and other pronouncements applicable to
health care organizations.

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing and central to the
provision of health care services are reported as revenue and expenses. Peripheral or incidental
transactions are reported as other gains and losses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant management
estimates include net patient service revenue and related patient accounts receivable, the valuation
of investments, the determination of impairment of long-lived assets, self-insurance reserves,
accrued retirement benefits, and estimated third-party payor settlements.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
at the date of purchase, excluding amounts classified as assets whose use is limited or restricted.

Patient and Trade Accounts Receivable

Patient and trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a
charge to earnings and a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable
coliection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and the applicable
patient accounts receivable, Credit is extended without collateral.

in evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the System analyzes past results and
identifies frends for each major payor source of revenue for the purposes of estimating the
appropriate amounts for the allowance for doubtful accounts and the provision for bad debts. Data
in each major payor source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. Specifically, for receivables refating to services provided to patients having third-
party coverage, an allowance for doubtful accounts and a corresponding provision for bad debts are
established at varying levels based on the age of the receivables and payor source, For receivables
refating to self-pay patients, a provision for doubtful accounts and corresponding allowance for
doubtful accounts is made in the pericd services are rendered based on experience indicating the
inability or unwillingness of patients to pay amounts for which they are financially responsible.
Actual write-offs are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair vaiues and all investments in debt
securities are recorded at fair value. Realized gains or losses on the sale of investments are
determined by use of average cost. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from
excess of revenue and gains over expenses and losses and reported as an increase or decrease in
net assets, except that declines in fair value that are judged to be other than temporary are reported
as realized losses. The System periodically reviews its investments to identify those individual
investments for which fair value is below cost. The System then makes a determination as fo
whether the investment should be considered other than temporarily impaired. There were no
significant impairments at September 29, 2013 or September 28, 2012,

investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and cverall
market volatility. Consequently, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations and changes in net assets.
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Several System organizations own interests in joint venture entities. Ownership interests between
20% and 50% in a joint venture are accounted for by using the equity methoed of accounting. Using
the equity method, the investment is increased by the System organization's share of the entity's
income and additional investments. The investment is decreased by the System organization's
share of the entity's losses and distributions.

Derivative Instrumenis

The System recognizes derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities and measures those
instruments at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on
the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation. For a derivative instrument
designated as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period of change
together with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributed to the risk being hedged. For
a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the derivative's
gain or loss is initially reported as an unrealized gain or loss on investments and subsequently
reclassified into earnings when the hedged exposure affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the
gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately. For derivative instruments that are not designated
as accounting hedges, changes in fair value are recognized in earnings in the period of change.
The System records derivative instruments in the statements of cash flows to operating, investing,
or financing activities consistent with the cash flows of the hedged item.

Inventory

System organizations record inventory at the fower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out, or
average cost methods.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include Board of Directors (the "Board") designated assets,
assets held in trust under debt agreements, self-insurance trust arrangements, and assets that are
donor-restricted. Permanently restricted trusts held by unrelated entities for the benefit of various
System organizations are reported as beneficial interest in perpetual trusts. Board-designated
assets may be used at the Board's discretion.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of gifts, at fair market value at the date
of the gift, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Buildings and
equipment under capital lease obligations are amortized using the sfraight-line method over the
shorter period of the lease term or estimated useful life of the building or equipment. Such
amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of
operations.
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Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as an increase in
unrestricted net assets (excluded from the excess of revenue and gains over expenses and losses),
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived
assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as an increase in restricted net
assets. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be
maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the denated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less cost to sell.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The System recognizes the liability for conditional asset retirement obligations when the System
has a legal obligation to perform asset retirement activities. The fair value of the liability for the legal
obligation associated with an asset retirement is recorded in the period in which the obligation is
incurred. When the liahility is initially recorded, the cost of the asset retirement is capitalized.

Substantially all of the asset retirement obligations recorded relate to estimated costs to remove
asbestos that is contained within the System's facilities. The adjustments to the carrying amount of
the asset retirement obligation were approximately $62,000 and $29,000 in 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and were primarily attributable to revised estimates, accretion expense and removal of
asbestos.

Costs of Borrowing

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets, net of
investment income on borrowed assets held by trustees, are capitalized as a compenent of the cost
of acquiring those assets. The amount of interest that was capitalized totaled approximately
$4,796,000 and $10,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Deferred financing costs and original issue
premiums and discounts are amortized over the period the related obligation is outstanding on a
straight-line hasis.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whaose use has been limited by donors to a specific time
period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors fo be
maintained in perpetuity.
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Interpretation of Relevant Law

The System has interpreted state law as requiring realized and unrealized gains of permanently
restricted net assets to be retained in a temporarily restricled net asset classification until
appropriated by the Board and expended. As a result of this inferpretation, the System classifies as
permanently restricted net assets (a) the criginal value of the gifts donated to the permanent
endowment when explicit donor stipulations requiring permanent maintenance of the historical fair
value are present, and (b) the original value of the subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment
when explicit donor stipulations requiring permanent maintenance of the historical fair value are
present. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund composed of accumulated
gains not required to be maintained in perpetuity is classified as temporarily restricted net assets
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure in a manner consistent with the donor's
stipulations.

The System administers a formal spending policy consistent with state law to appropriate the net
appreciation of permanently restricted net assets as is deemed prudent by the Board considering
the System's long- and short-term needs, price-level trends, and general economic conditions.
Under this policy, the System maintains an annual spending level generally in the range of 3%-6%,
with a target of 5%, of each endowment fund's moving five-year average market value. Endowment
assets are invested in a manner to generate returns at least equal to and preferably greater than
the consumer price index, plus 5%. To satisfy ifs long-term rate-of-return objectives, the System
targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments
within prudent risk constraints. Realized and unrealized gains on permanently restricted net assets,
which are not specifically restricted by donors, are reported in a temporarily restricted net asset
classification until appropriated by the Board and expended.

Revenue Recognition

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Under the terms of various agreements,
regulations, and statutes, certain elements of third-party reimbursement to System organizations
are subject to negotiation, audit, and/or final determination by the third-party payors. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in
the near term. Variances between preliminary estimates of net patient service revenue and final
third-party settlements are included in net patient service revenue in the year in which the
settlement or change in estimate occurs. In 2013 and 2012, changes in prior-year estimates
increased net patient service revenue by $31,974,000 and $35,318,000, respectively.

Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to System organizations are reported at fair
value at the date the promise is received. Unconditional promises 1o give that are expected to be
collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
discounts on those amounts are computed using a risk-free rate applicable to the year in which the
promise is received. Amortization of the discount is included in contribution revenue. Conditional
promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported at fair value at the date the gift is
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received. Gifts are reported as an increase in either temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and
reported in the consolidated statements of operations as net assets released from restrictions.
Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are
reported as additions to unrestricted net asseis in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Excess of Revenue and Gains Over Expenses and Losses

The consolidated statements of operations include excess of revenue and gains over expenses and
losses. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from excess of revenue and gains
over expenses and losses, consistent with industry practice, include transfers of assets o and from
affiliates for other than goods and services, the change in unrealized gains and losses on
investments, pension and postretirement plan adjustments, and contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such assets).

Other Revenue
Unrestricted investment income on operating assets is included in other revenue in the year earned.
Grant revenue, meaningful use incentives (see below), cafeteria sales, and gift shop revenue are

also included as other revenue,

Meaningful Use Revenues

The Medicare and Medicaid electronic health record (EHR) incentive programs provide a financial
incentive for achieving "meaningful use" of certified EHR technology. The criteria for meaningful use
will be staged in three steps from fiscal year 2012 through 2016. During 2013 and 2012, the System
attested to Stage 1 meaningful use cerification from the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS) and recorded meaningful use revenues of $3,890,000 and $5,464,000,
respectively, in the consclidated statements of operations. The meaningful use attestation is subject
to audit by CMS in future years. As part of this process, a final settlerment amount for the incentive
payments could be established that differs from the initial calculation, and could result in return of a
portion or all of the incentive payments received by the System.

The Medicaid program provides incentive payments fo hospitals and eligible professicnals as they
adopt, implement, upgrade or demonstrate meaningful use in the first year of participation and
demonstrate meaningful use for up to five remaining participation years. The State of Maine
program was launched on October 2011; however, there was an attestation tail pericd from
January 1, 2012 through March 31, 2012 where providers were allowed to apply late for payments
related to program year 2011. During 2013 and 2012, the System recorded meaningful use
revenues of $4,330,000 and $11,102,000, respectively, after attesting to Stage 1 meaningful use, of
which $6,587,500 related to program year 2011 was recognized in revenue in fiscal year 2012,
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The System recognizes revenue ratably over the reporting period starting at the point when
management is reasonably assured it will meet all of the meaningful use objectives and any other
specific requirements applicable for the reporting period.

Income Taxes

EMHS, its hospitals, and certain other affiliates have been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service to be tax-exempt charitable organizations as described in Section 501(c)(3) or 501(c)(2) of
the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and, accordingly, are exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for federal income
taxes has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for these
organizations.

Tax-exempt charitable organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as
the result of a tax position they have historically taken on various tax exposure items including
unrelated business income or tax status. Under guidance issued by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB), assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or
positions expected to be taken in income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet
the "more-likely-than-not” threshold, based upon the technical merits of the position. Estimated
interest and penalties, if applicable, related to uncertain tax positions are included as a component
of income tax expense. The System has evaluated its tax position taken or expected to be taken on
income tax returns and concluded the impact to be not material.

Certain of the System's affiliates are taxable entities. Deferred taxes related tc these entities are
based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities
using enacted tax rates in effect in the years the differences are expected to reverse. The deferred
tax assets and liabilities for these entities are not material,

Accrual for Self-Insurance Liabilities

The liabilities for outstanding losses and loss-related expenses include estimates for malpractice
losses incurred but not reported, as well as losses pending settlement. Insurance recoveries are
included in other assets and are not netted against the liability. Such liabilities are necessarily
based on estimates, and while management believes that the amounts provided are adequate, the
ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the amounts provided. As a result, there is at least
a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.
The methods for making such estimates and the resulting liability are actuarially reviewed on an
annual basis and any adjustments are reflected in operations currently.

The System also estimates and records a liability for claims incurred but not reported for employee
health and dental benefits provided through self-insured plans. The liahility is estimated based on
prior claims experience and the expected time period from the date such claims are incurred to the
date the related claims are submitted and paid.
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Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

The System recognizes the overfunded or underfunded status of its defined benefit and
postretirement plans as an asset or liability in its consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the
funded status of the plans are reporied as a change in unrestricted net assets presented below the
excess of revenue and gains over expenses and losses in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets in the year in which the changes occur.

Discontinued Operations

On November 1, 2012, EMMC transferred ownership of its outpatient dialysis services to an
independent third-party provider. EMMC received $16,342,000 in net proceeds and recorded a
$15,116,000 gain on sale in fiscal year 2013.

All outpatient dialysis services were ireated as discontinued operations for fiscal years 2013 and
2012. Net patient service revenue of $978,680 and $11,173,060 is reported net of related expenses
for the fiscal years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2011-07, Presentation and
Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities, which requires health care entities to change the
presentation of their statement of operations by reclassifying the provision for bad debts associated
with patient service revenue from an operating expense to a deduction from patient service
revenue. Additionally, health care entities are required to provide enhanced disclosure about how it
considers ¢ollectability in determining the amount and timing of revenue and bad debt expense, The
amendments also require disclosures of patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and
discounts) as well as qualitative and quantitative information about changes in the allowance for
doubtful accounts. The provisions of ASU No. 2011-07 are effective for the System beginning
September 30, 2012 and were applied retrospectively.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the
current year presentation.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, the System has considered
transactions or events occurring through December 20, 2013, which was the date that the financial
statements were issued. '
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Effective October 4, 2013, EMHS became the sole corporate member of Mercy Health Systems of
Maine (MHSM) of Portland, Maine. MHSM owns Mercy Hospital, a Maine nonprofit, tax-exempt
corporation that operates a 230-bed acute care hospital with two campuses located in Portland,
Maine, Mercy Recovery Center located in Westbrook, Maine, and VNA Home Health Hospice
(VNA). Serving as a continuum of care provider for Southern Maine, MHSM provides a broad range
of medical and surgical services, as well as eight primary care locations, four express care
locations, and 17 sub-specialty physician practices ranging from thoracic and spine surgery to ENT
and oncology care. EMHS believes it will benefit from MHSM's extensive work on the development
of an ambulatory network and VNA’s extensive home-based care systems, which are considered
central to improving the health of their communities.

The accounting for the fransaction is expected to be completed in the first quarter of fiscal year
2014 and, therefore, its effect on the consolidated financial statements of the System for the year
ending September 27, 2014 has not yet been determined.

There was no consideration transferred in connection with the Mercy transaction; however, MHSM
had ouistanding bonds with its previous parent company, Catholic Health East, which needed to be
defeased as part of the transaction. On October 4, 2013, $69,661,000 was drawn down on a line of
credit and transferred to MHSA in the form of an intercompany loan to fund the defeasance.

The unaudited book value of MSHM assets and liabilities at September 30, 2013 was $195,358,000
and $126,846,000, respectively.
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3. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue for the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012
consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2013 201
Full charges for services to patients;

Daily patient services $ 271,620 $ 264,097
Ancillary services 589,470 556,426
Outpatient services 988,030 042 825
Gross patient service revenue 1,849,120 1,763,348
Less contractual allowances (787,117) (737,417)
Less charity care (55,341) (49,038)
(842,458) (786,455)

Patient services revenue {net of contractual
allowances and discounts) 1,006,662 976,893
Less provision for bad debts (46,029) (40,202)
Net patient service revenue $ 960,633 $ 936,691

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $42,791,000 and $41,396,000 at September 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively, and relates primarily to self-pay accounts. Gross self-pay
accounts receivable were $44,970,000 and $42,641,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, respectively. During the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, self-pay
write-offs were $51,073,000 and $40,079,000, respectively. The increase in write-offs relates
directly to the increase in revenue from self-pay patients.

Revenue related to self-pay patients was $135,831,000 and $113,593,000 for the years ended
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.

4. Charity Care and Community Service

When patients meet certain criteria under the System's charity care policies, System organizations
provide them with care without charge or at amounts less than established rates. System
organizations do not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care and,
accordingly, these amounts are not included in net patient service revenue. The System estimates
the costs associated with providing charity care by calculating a ratio of total cost to total gross
charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges associated with
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providing care to patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of caring for charity care patients
was $26,166,442 and $23,492,925 for the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, respectively. Funds received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided were
$430,486 and $323,525 for the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012,
respectively.

In furtherance of their charitable purposes, System organizations provide many services and
programs at reduced or no cost to the public, schools, and civic groups. Some of these services
include health screenings, clinics, coordination of blood drives, educational materials and
presentations, radio and television information programs on health topics, hosting support groups
and programs, and offering a speakers bureau of professionals to discuss health issues.

. Third-Party Reimbursement

The System's affiliates have agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments fo the
respective organizations at amounts different from their established rates. A summary of the
payment arrangements with major third-party payors is as follows:

Medicare

Net revenue from the Medicare program accounted for approximately 32% and 33% of the
System's net patient service revenue for 2013 and 2012, respectively. The acute care hospitals are
subject to the federal Prospective Payment System {PPS} for Medicare inpatient hospital services,
inpatient skilled nursing facilities services, inpatient rehabilitation services, and for certain outpatient
services. Under these prospective payment methodologies, Medicare pays a prospectively
determined per discharge, per day, or per visit rate for non-physician services. These rates vary
according to the applicable Diagnosis Related Group (DRG), Case-Mix Group, or Resource
Utilization Group. Capital costs related to Medicare inpatient PPS services are paid based upon a
standardized amount per discharge weighted by DRG. TAMC is designated as a Medicare-
dependent hospital for reimbursement purposes. Accordingly, TAMC receives an additional
payment amount, which is a portion of the difference between the federal cperating rate and a
hospital-specific rate. Inland was selected to participate in a Medicare Rural Community Hospital
Demonstration Project and is therefore no longer subject o PPS payments for inpatient hospital
services and associated capital costs for the duration of this five-year program. During the first fiscal
year of the program which began September 25, 2011, Medicare paid for the full reascnable costs
incurred for inpatient services provided. The payment for subsequent years is the lesser of
reasonable costs or a target amount determined by increasing the first year program costs by the
inpatient prospective payment factor update for each succeeding year. For most outpatient
services, Medicare makes payment based upon the Ambulatory Payment Classification {APC) of
each patient. Certain other outpatient services are reimbursed according to fee screens. The
hospitals are reimbursed for cost-reimbursable items at an interim tentative rate with final
settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare
audit contractor. Outpatient services provided at the System's rural health centers are reimbursed
on the basis of reasonable costs per visit.
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As a specialty psychiatric hospital facility, Acadia is reimbursed for Medicare inpatient services on a
PPS basis. The prospective payment methodology for psychiatric facilities is based on a per diem
rate. This rate will be adjusted upwards to reflect higher costs on the earlier days of the stay and
downwards towards the end of the stay. The per diem will vary based on diagnosis, comorbidity
condition, age, wage index, rural setting, the presence of a full-service emergency room, and the
extent of teaching activity in the facility.

BHMH, C.A. Dean, and SVH have been granted Critical Access Hospital (CAH) status, which
continues as long as certain utilization criteria are met. Each CAH is reimbursed 101% of allowable
costs for its inpatient and substantially all of its outpatient services provided to Medicare patients.

The System began participating in the CMS Pioneer Accountable Care Crganization (ACO) on
January 1, 2012. System hospitals participating include EMMC, BHMH, CA Dean, Inland, SVH and
TAMC. Additional organizations participated in the ACO through contractual arrangements or
through ownerships in Beacon Health, LLC. Through this agreement, the System provides care
coordination and healthcare management to Medicare enrollees identified as patients of the ACO
participants. Under the program, the System is eligible to share in the resulting savings in year one,
and in shared savings and losses beginning January 1, 2013. The System recorded shared savings
revenue of $2,026,025 in 2013 related to plan year 2012. The System has recorded shared losses
of $1,800,000 for plan year 2013 based on preliminary data through June 30, 2013. The initial term
of the agreement is through December 31, 2014 and can be extended for an additional two-year
term. The System is required to meet certain performance and quality measures to maintain
eligibility.

MaineCare

MaineCare reimbursement is based upon prospectively determined rates that vary according to the
applicable DRG. Capital and physician service costs related to MaineCare inpatient services are
paid based on a percentage of allowable costs. Outpatient services were reimbursed partially based
upon discounted allowable costs and partially based on fee schedules until July 1, 2012, From
July 1, 2012 forward, MaineCare makes payment based upon the APC of each patient. Certain
other outpatient services are reimbursed according to fee screens. Prior to the implementation of
DRG and APC prospective payments, reimbursement was made for most services at a tentative
rate with final settlement determined after completion of annual cost reports by the State. Only
capital, physician service costs, and medical education costs after July 1, 2012 are subject to a final
settlement process. Nursing facilities are reimbursed partially on a prospectively determined per
diem rate for direct and routine services together with a fixed cost component that is subject to final
settlement determined after completion of an annual cost report by the State.

BHMH, C. A. Dean, and SVH are also recognized as CAHs by the MaineCare program and, as
such, are reimbursed on a percentage of allowable costs for inpatient and outpatient services
provided to MaineCare patients.
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Acadia is reimbursed for MaineCare inpatient services based on a negotiated rate related to
established charges. Outpatient services are reimbursed based on a percentage of cost.

For the past several years, the interim payments used to reimburse the hospitals in the System
were significantly below the amounts due to the hospitals based upon the reimbursement statutes
in effect each year. During September 2013, the hospitals received payments of $106,670,000 on
these receivables. Net revenue from the MaineCare program accounted for approximately 19% of
the System's net patient service revenue for both 2013 and 2012. At September 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, amounts due from and amounts due to the State of Maine (the State) under
the MaineCare program consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012
Amounts due from MaineCare — current $ 520 $ 2,242
Amounts due from MaineCare — long-term 21,604 109,448
Total amounts due from MaineCare 22,124 111,880
Amounts due to MaineCare — current {1,662) (6,839)
Amounts due to MaineCare — long-term {5,079) {(1,550)
Net ameounts due from MaineCare $ 15,383 $ 103,301

The System’s hospitals have not received final settlement on cost reporis filed under the MaineCare
program since 2004. For the open cost report years from 2005 to 2013, the System has established
reserves against changes in the total obligation arising from final settlement of the cost reports. At
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, the System had $33,869,000 and $45,968,000,
respectively, of MaineCare reserves included in non-current estimated third party-payor
settlements. Estimated settlements receivable are also classified as current or non-current based
on expected timing of final settlement.

At September 29, 2012, the State's current budget did not fully provide for outstanding amounts due
to the hospitals; accordingly, certain amounts receivable from the MaineCare program were
reported as noncurrent assets because management determined that such amounts were not
reasonably expected to be realized in cash within one year of the consolidated balance sheet date.
These amounts were received during the year ended September 28, 2013.

The State assesses a health care provider tax on the revenues of hospitals. The ameount of tax
assessed to System organizations was approximately $20,518,000 and $18,013,000 in 2013 and
2012, respectively. This amount has been reported as supplies and other expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Other Payor Arrangements

The System's affiliates have entered into other payment agreements with commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider crganizations. The basis for
payment under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge and per
day, discounts from established charges, fee screens, and capitation fees earned on a per member,
per month basis.

. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, investments and assets whose use is limited or
restricted consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2013 012
Short-term investments:
Temporary cash investments $ 32 $ 56
Mutual funds, institutional funds and common collective trusts 14,183 7,186
Fixed-income securities 384 687
Total short-term investments $ 14,599 $ 7,929
Assets whose use is limited or restricted — current:
Temporary cash investments $ 32,537 $ 23717
Mutual funds, institutional funds and common collective trusts 119 114
Fixed-income securities 14,125 3423
Total assets whose use is limited or restricted — current $ 46,781 $ 27254
Assets whose use is limited or restricted — noncurrent:
Temporary cash investments $ 82766 § 75737
Marketable equity securities 7,946 6,153
Other equity investments 4,792 498
Mutual funds, institutional funds and common collective trusts 218,710 133,672
Guarantee investment contracts 66,633 -
Fixed-income securities 176,737 105,801
Pledges and other receivables 5,773 4,648
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 10,852 10,217
Total assets whose use is limited or restricted — noncurrent $ 574,209 $ 336,726

Assets of self-insured programs for employee health benefits, certain assets held in frust under
bond indentures, and portions of charitable gift annuities are classified as current assets.
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For the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, investment income consisted of
the following (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012
Interest and dividend income $ 4,640 $ 4471
Realized gains and losses on sale of securities — net 17,672 4,960
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investments (6,701) 10,204
Total $ 15,611 $ 19,635

For the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 28, 2012, investment income (loss) was
repotted as follows (dollars in thousands):

Other revenue $ 7,101 $ 2,892
Investment income and other — net 9,489 6,096
Change in net unrealized gains {losses) on investments (5,480) 5,033

Consolidated statements of changes in net assets:
Temporarily restricted net assets — restricted investment

income and realized and unrealized investment gains 3,734 4,717
Permanently restricted net assets — unrealized

investment gains 667 897

Total $ 15,511 $ 19,635
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Derivative Financial Instruments

AHS and EMHS are parties in several fixed-payor swap contracts related to underlying, variable
rate debt obligations (which are disclosed in Note 9). The purpose of these contracts is to protect
AHS and EMHS against rising interest rates related to the variable rate debt. These contracts
qualify for hedge accounting as a cash flow hedge. The combined increase in the fair value of the
contracts amounted to $1,267,000 during 2013 and decrease amounted to $43,000 during 2012,
and is included in change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investments in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. The net settlement related to the contracts is included in
interest expense. AHS and EMHS expect to hold the swap contracts until their respective
maturities, at which point unrealized gains or losses will be zero. The fair value of the inferest rate
swaps was a liability of $2,412,000 and $3,679,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, respectively, and is included in other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
shests. The interest swap contract disclosures are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fair Value Fair Value
Liability Liability
Fixed Variable as of as of

Rate Rate Notional September 28, September 29, Termination

Paid Received Amount 2013 2012 Date Counterparty
AHS 7.10% 168% $ 3,212 § 683 $ 979 September 2021 TD Bank
AHS 7.09% 1.68% 1,882 378 550 November 2020 TD Bank
EMHS 5.57% 1.53% 10,176 1,318 1,922 November 2018 TD Bank
EMHS 4.95% 1.53% 5,818 33 228 November 2013 TD Bank
Total unrealized loss $ 2412 $ 3,679

Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable includes the net present value of future unconditional promises to give from
donors. At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, the future amounts receivable for
unconditional promises to give are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012

Due within one year $2,528 § 2,176
Due within two to five years 3,598 3,092
Thereafter 172 247
Total receivable 6,298 5515
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges and discounts (838) (873}
Total net receivable $5360 § 4642
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Annuity Agreements

The System has entered into various charitable gift annuity agreements with donors with the assets
held in trust and administered by the System. These assets are included in assets whose use is
limited or restricted in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and totaled approximately
$1,519,000 and $1,422,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. A
contribution is recognized at the date the agreement is established. Liabilities associated with the
agreements are recorded at the present value of estimated future payments to be made to the
donors. The liabilities are included in noncurrent liabilities and accrued expenses in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and totaled approximately $282,000 and $356,000 at
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.

. Property and Equipment

At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, property and equipment consisted of the following
(doltars in thousands);

2013 201
Land $ 9275 $ 8928
Buildings and land improvements 342,264 320,186
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 461,511 438,525
Leasehold improvements 18,367 17,884

831,417 785,521

Less accumulated depreciation and amottization (504,578) (484,530}

326,839 300,991

Construction in progress 48,013 37,073

Net property and equipment $ 374,852  § 338,064

Property and equipment held for sale of $2,991,000 is included above as of September 29, 2012.
There was no property and equipment held for sale as of September 28, 2013.

EMHS and its affliates have commitments for facility expansions totaling approximately
$157,556,000 and $28,173,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.

Construction in progress relates primarily to the construction of a new tower to add inpatient,
surgical and diaghostic services and renovation of existing patient care areas at EMMC. A
certificate of need for $247 million was received from the State of Maine, which does not include
replacement equipment or debt service reserve funds. Phase 1 of the project is being funded
through a 2013 bond issuance of $143.9 million including $11 million bond premium, and net assets
of approximately $41 million and is expected to be completed in 2015, Phase 2 is expected to cost
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$94 million and is expected to be completed in 2017. Upon completion, capacity will increase from
346 total beds to 411, operating rooms will increase from 21 to 24, and the majority of patient rooms
will he converted to private.

At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, $7,571,000 and $7,804,000, respectively, of
property and equipment purchases and costs related to construction projects were included in
accounts payable.

Property and equipment includes a building and equipment recorded under capital leases totaling
$9,925,000 and $9,764,000 with related accumulated depreciation of $8,812,000 and $7,924,000 at
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.

. Intangibles and Other Assets

At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, intangibles and other assets consisted of the
following (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012
Investments in joint ventures:
Rosscare Nursing Homes, Inc. $ 5886 $ 5035
Advanced Collections Services, LLC 178 -
Commercial Delivery Systems, LLC 356 385
County Physical Therapy, LLC 563 538
LifeFlight of Maine, LLC 2,025 2,363
MedComm, LLC (374) {346)
M Drug, LLC - {(475)
New Century Healthcare, LLC 1 1
Northern New England Accountable Care Collaborative, LLC 1,000 500
Penobscot Logistics Solutions, LLC 180 165
Total 9,815 8,166
Other receivables 1,493 2,374
Retirement community development costs 703 717
Deferred tax assets 2,294 1,522
Customer lists 3,122 -
Other 3,495 2,141
Total $ 20,922 $ 14,920
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The System's share of earnings {losses) in its joint ventures totaled $38,000 and ${2,806,000) for
the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. Distributions from
these joint ventures totaled $535,000 and $1,079,000 for the years ended September 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively. In 2013 and 2012, the System increased its investment in joint
ventures by $1,005,000 and $1,675,000, respectively.

During the ordinary course of business, the System may provide services to various joint ventures.
This income is included in sales and contract revenue and was not material in 2013 or 2012.

The System entities own 50% interests in several joint venture entities (except for a 33.3% interest
in Penobscot Logistics Solutions, LLC and 25% interest in Northern New England Accountable
Care Collaborative, LLC). Selected financial information derived from the unaudited financial
statements of each joint venture entity at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 is as
follows (dollars in thousands):

2013
Total Long-Term Net

Name of Jeint Venture Owner Assets Debt Equity
Colonial Acres RNHI  § 3,260 $ 518 $ 2,356
Dexter Health Care RNHI 965 77 626
Katahdin Health Care RNHI 1,023 502 206
Ross Manor Associates RNHI 14,484 7,046 5,664
Stillwater Health Care RNHI 3,905 615 2,920

Rosscare Nursing Homes, Inc. 23,637 8,758 11,772
Advanced Collections Services, LLC AHS 1,089 - 356
Commercial Delivery Systems, LLC AHS 1,271 80 395
County Physical Therapy, LLC TAMC 1,288 63 1,126
LifeFlight of Maine, LLC EMHS 9,583 4,910 4,050
MedComm, LLC AHS 185 666 (746)
New Cenfury Healtheare, LLC EMHS 1 . 1
Northern New England Accountable Care Collaborative, LLC EMHS 4,000 - 4,000
Penobscot Logistics Solutions, LLC AHS 6,408 5,447 540

Total $ 47,462 $ 19,924 $ 21,494
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2012
Total Long-Term Net

Name of Joint Venture Owner Assets Debt Equity
Colonial Acres RNHI $ 2718 % 577 $ 2,208
Dexter Health Care RNHI 1,182 86 566
Katahdin Health Care RNHI 1,044 522 220
Ross Manor Associates RNHI 14,564 7,385 5,408
Stillwater Health Care RNHI 3,793 593 1,670

Rosscars Nursing Homes, Inc. 23,301 9,163 10,670
Commercial Delivery Systems, LLC AHS 1,222 76 770
County Physical Therapy, LLC TAMC 1,359 94 1,076
LifeFlight of Maine, LLC EMHS 10,576 5,392 4,725
MedComm, LLC AHS 156 42 (690}
M Drug, LLC AHS 8,654 3,354 {4,626)
New Century Healthcare, LLC EMHS 1 - 1
Northern New England Accountable Care Collaborative, LLC EMHS 2,000 - 2,000
Penobscot Logistics Solutions, LLC AHS 6,584 5,764 495

Total $ 53,853 $ 23,885 $ 13,821
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9. Debt

Long-term debt at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 consisted of the following
(dollars in thousands):

2013 2012
Bonds payable:
EMMC Series 2013 Bonds {due in varying amounts each July through the
year 2043 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% per annum) $143,900 $ -
SVH Finance Authority of Maine 2013 Revenue Obligation Bonds (due in
varying amounts each January through the year 2029 with fixed interest rates
ranging from 2.87% to 3.41% per annum) 10,212 “
TAMC Series 2012A Bonds (due in varying amounts each July through the
year 2022 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 5.00% per annum) 4,651 5,156
BHMH/TAMC Series 2010B Bonds (due in varying amounts each July through the
year 2028 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.25% per annum) 6,017 6,856
Acadia/EMMC Series 2010A Bonds {due in varying amounts each July through the
year 2040 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.25% per annum) 67,7117 70,922
inland/Lakewood Series 2007B Bonds (due in varying amounts each July through
the year 2037 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% per annum) 8,442 8,652
Inland Series 2008A Bonds {due in varying amounts each July through the year
2030 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% per annum) 1,033 1,078
SVH Series 2004B Bonds {due in varying amounts each July through the year
2015 with fixed-interest rates ranging from 3.625% to 3.75% per annum) 128 213
Inland/Lakewood Series 2004A Bonds (due in varying amounts each July with
fixed-interest rates ranging from 4.375% to 5.375% per annum); paid in full in 2013 - 554
SVH Series 2001B Bonds (due in varying amounis each July with fixed-interest
rates ranging from 4.90% to 5.20% per annumy); paid in full in 2013 - 2,643
242,100 96,074
Net unamortized original issue premium 14,163 3,318
Bonds payable — net 256,283 99,392
Other long-term debt;
Installment loans and other 66,094 61,842
Capital lease obligations 1,197 1,881
Total long-term debt 323,554 163,115
Less current portion (12,246) {10,327}
Long-term debt — net of current portion $311,308 $ 152,788
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Bonds Payable

Series 2013 Bonds — In 2013, EMMC issued $143,900,000 in notes payable to secure tax-exempt
revenue bonds issued by Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority")
for the purpose of financing a portion of the first phase of the expansion and modernization project.
The Series 2013 Bonds are collateralized by a security interest in its gross receipts, equipment and
a mortgage lien on its main campus.

Finance Authority of Maine 2013 Bonds — In 2013, SVH issued $10,500,000 in notes payable to
secure tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Finance Authority of Maine for the purpose of
financing construction costs and refunding existing debt. The Series 2013 Bonds are collateralized
by a security interest in the pledged receipts.

Series 2012A Bonds — In 2012, TAMC issued $5,156,350 in notes payable to secure tax-exempt
revenue bonds issued by the Authority for the purpose of refunding existing debt. The Series 2012A
Bonds are collateralized by substantially all of the property and equipment of TAMC and a security
interest in the gross receipts of the entity.

Series 2010B Bonds — In 2010, BHMH and TAMC issued $2,223,000 and $6,243,000,
respectively, in notes payable to secure tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Authority for the
purpose of refunding existing debt. The Series 2010B Bonds are coliateralized by substantially all of
the property and equipment of BHMH and TAMC and a security interest in the gross receipts of
each entity.

Series 2010A Bonds — In 2010, Acadia and EMMC issued $76,772,000 in notes payable to
secure tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Authority for the purpose of refunding existing debt
and financing new construction at EMMC. EMHS, EMMC, and Acadia are jointly and severally
obligated to pay principal and interest on the notes when due. The notes are collateralized by the
pledged and assigned revenue of EMHS, EMMC, and Acadia. The Series 2010A Bonds are
collateralized by a security interest in their gross receipis.

Series 2007B Bonds — In 2008, Inland and Lakewood issued $9,537,000 in notes payable to
secure tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Authority for the purpose of hospital and nursing
home renovation and expansion. The Series 2007B Bonds are collateralized by substantially all of
the property of Inland and Lakewood and a security interest in their gross receipts.

Series 2006A Bonds — In 2006, Inland issued $1,303,000 in notes payable to secure tax-exempt
revenue bonds issued by the Authority for the purpose of hospital renovations. The Series 2006A
Bonds are collateralized by substantially all of the property of Inland and a security interest in its
gross receipts,

Series 2004B Bonds — In 2005, SVH issued $748,000 in notes payable to secure tax-exempt
revenue bonds issued by the Authority for the purpose of hospital renovations and new
construction. The notes are collateralized by a security interest in its gross receipts.
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Installment Loans

In 1999, EMHS borrowed $25,000,000 from a commercial bank. The loan requires a monthly fixed-
principal repayment sufficient to repay the debt in full at or before June 2019. The note requires
interest at the rate of 1% above the London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) resulting in an interest
rate of 1.18% at September 28, 2013 and 1.21% at September 29, 2012. The outstanding balance
was $6,955,000 and $8,205,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.
Security to the lender includes a negative pledge on all unencumbered assets of EMHS at the time
of borrowing.

In 2009, EMHS purchased an office building in Brewer, Maine. The building and related acquisition
costs were financed through proceeds of two mortgage notes payable in a combined amount of
$23,700,000, collateralized by the building. The notes are amortized over a 25-year period, but are
structured in five-year and ten-year terms. The five-year loan of $6,504,500 bears a fixed-interest
rate of 4.95%. This five-year loan required a balloon payment of $5,804,731 due in November 2013.
The note was refinanced in November 2013 and, as a result, is reflected as long-term debt. The
amended loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.23%. The ten-year loan of $17,195,500 includes
$11,270,500 that bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.57%. The remaining $5,925,000 bears interest
equal to one-month LIBOR, plus 1.35% resulting in an interest rate of 1.53% and 1.57% at
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. The outstanding balance was
$21,344,000 and $21,884,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. The
notes require certain financial covenants to be met on both a quarterly and annual basis.

The acquisition of DPRC and DPI in 2006 included the assumption of a mortgage and various notes
payable, DPI has a mortgage collateralized by real estate and personal property and guaranteed by
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). In March 2012, the mortgage was
refinanced at a lower interest rate and previously unpaid interest payments were rolled into a
second mortgage with repayment terms based on available cash flow. The first mortgage had an
outstanding balance of $13,389,000 and $13,650,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, respectively. The second mortgage had an outstanding balance of $3,444,000 and
$3,550,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. Beginning March 2012,
the first note bears interest at 3.55% per annum and requires monthly principal and interest
payments of $108,000 through February 2044, The second note bears interest at 2.65% per
annum. The note requires interest and principal payments when there is surplus cash as
determined by HUD regulations.

DPI has a revolving working capital line-of-credit with total amounts outstanding of $1,999,000 at
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012. The note matures in April 2014 and requires
monthly interest payments. The note requires interest at the prime rate for domestic banks,
resulting in interest rates of 3.25% at both September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012,

During 2011, DPRC replaced an existing revolving line-of-credit with a note payable. The
outstanding balance was $2,400,000 and $3,200,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, respectively. The note bears interest of 4.68% through April 2014 at which time the rate is
adjusted to the prime rate for domestic banks. The note requires annual principal payments of
$800,000 through April 2016.
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In addition, DPRC holds a tax increment financing note with an outstanding balance of $708,000
and $779,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. The note bears
interest at the prime rate for domestic banks, resulting in interest rates of 3.25% at both
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. The note requires semiannual
payments of principaf and interest with a final payment due in April 20186.

tn 2013, Inland received a letter of intent to refinance its construction line of credit with a note
payable; therefore the balance is classified as an installment loan. The balance of $5,058,000 as of
September 28, 2013 will bear an interest rate of 2.5% above LIBOR and is payable through 2033,

Several other System affiliates have mortgages, notes payable, and installment loans outstanding
totaling $10,797,000 and $8,575,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.
The notes bear interest at rates ranging between 1.68% and 7.67% per annum and are payable
through 2025.

Lines-of-Credit

EMHS has a $35,000,000 revolving line-of-credit arrangement, which expires in March 2015, This
line of credit was temporarily increased in September to $75,000,000, and in March 2014, it will
revert back to $35,000,000. Outstanding borrowings under the line-of-credit were $0 and
$7,898,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. Borrowings under the
agreement bear interest at the rate of .75% above LIBOR as of September 28, 2013 and 1.00%
above LIBOR as of September 29, 2012. Security to the lender includes a negative pledge on all
unencumbered assets of EMHS.

Certain of the System's other affiliates have line-of-credit agreements with interest ranging from
1.13% to 5.62% at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012. Maximum available borrowings
under the agreements aggregated $13,450,000 and $10,950,000 at September 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively. The lines expire at various dates in fiscal years 2014 and 2015
and are collateralized by accounts receivable and certain fixed assets. The outstanding balance
was $58,000 and $3,727,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.
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Principal Payments

Principal payments required on long-term debt, excluding capital lease obligations, for the next five
years and thereafter at September 28, 2013, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years Bonds QOther Debt Total
2014 $ 5783 $ 5935 $ 11,718
2015 8,149 4258 10,407
2016 6,294 4,768 11,062
2017 8,511 3,443 8,954
2018 ‘ 6,810 3,227 10,037
Thereafter 210,553 44 463 255,016
Total $ 242100 $ 66,004 $ 308,194

Loan Covenants

Several of the Ioan agreements contain covenants, which impose restrictions on, among other
things, additional indebtedness, transfers between affiliates, and dispositions of property and

require that certain financial ratios be met.

Capital Leases

EMHS and System affiliates have capital lease obligations outstanding totaling $1,197,000 and
$1,881,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively. The obligations bear
interest at rates ranging between 1.09% and 13.50% per annum and are payable through 2018.

The System's future obligations under capital leases at September 28, 2013, are as follows (doliars

in thousands):

Years

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Total minimum lease payments

Less amounts representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

Amount
$ 589
323
206

108
90

1,316
119

$ 1,197
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10. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, temporarily restricted net assets are available for
the following purposes (dallars in thousands):

201 012

Cancer Care $ 8,096 $ 7,392
Capital projects 7,401 6,032
Charity care 5,048 4,622
Education and research 422 1,421
Women’s and children’s care 2,226 2,371
Other health care services 13,337 10,761

Total $ 36,530 $ 32,599

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, the investment returns on permanently restricted
net assets are restricted fo the following purposes (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012

Cancer Care $ 932 $ 851
Capital projects 4,270 4,208
Charity care 1,809 1,841
Education and research 464 627
Women's and children’s care 545 680
Other health care services 15,898 14,819

Total $ 23,918 $ 23,026
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September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Endowment Funds

The System's endowment consists of approximately 280 funds established for a variety of
purposes. For the purposes of this disclosure, endowment funds include both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board to function as endowment. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Endowment Net Asset Composition and Changes in Endowment Net Assets

A summary of the endowment net asset composition by type of fund at September 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, and the changes therein for the years then ended is as follows (dollars in

thousands):

September 28, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Resfricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $ 17,401 $ 23,918 $ 41,319
Board-designated endowment funds 2,504 - - 2,504
Total funds $ 2,504 $ 17,401 $ 23,918 $ 43,823

September 29, 2012
Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $ 15608 $ 23,026 $ 38634
Board-designated endowment funds 2,382 - - 2,382
Total funds $ 2,382 $ 15,608 $ 23,026 $ 41016
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September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Endowment net assets — September 24, 2011

tnvestment return:
Net appreciation
Change in beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts

Total investment return

Contributions

Additions to Board-designated funds

Appropriations of endowment assets
for expenditure

Other

Endowment net assets — September 29, 2012

Investment return:
Net appreciation
Change in beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts

Total investment return

Contributions

Additions to Board-designated funds

Appropriations of endowment assets
for expenditure

Other

Endowment net assets — September 28, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Toftal
$__ 2135 $_ 13098 $_2128 $_ 36519
334 3,861 - 4,195
- - 897 897
334 3,861 897 5,092
- - 762 762
25 - - 25
(108) (1,205) - {1,313)
(4) (146) 81 (69)
2,382 15,608 23,026 41.016
222 3,047 - 3,269
- - 667 667
222 3,047 667 3,936
- - 164 164
15 - - 15
(105) (1,127) - (1,232)
(10) {127} 61 (76)
$__2504 $_17,401 $_23,918 §$_ 43,823
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September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the System to retain as a fund in perpetuity.
There were no deficiencies at September 28, 2013 or September 29, 2012.

Professional Liability, Self-Insurance, and Other Contingencies

Professional and General Liability

System organizations participate in self-insurance plans for professional and patient general
liability, and nonpatient general liability coverage. Trust funding and accrued self-insurance
reserves are determined by independent acfuarial projections. Stop-loss or excess insurance
coverage has been obtained through varlous commercial insurance companies for the self-
insurance programs. For professional liability the coverage provides reimbursement for individual
claims in excess of $5 million and for aggregate claims in excess of $12 million up to a fotal of $15
million. For general liability the coverage provides for reimbursement for individual claims in excess
of $1 million and for aggregate claims in excess of $3 million. The investment assets and accrued
self-insurance reserves of the professional and general liability trust were $45,030,000 and
$32,768,000, respectively, as of September 28, 2013 and $34,752,000 and $33,746,000,
respectively, as of September 29, 2012.

Workers' Compensation

The System maintains a common trust fund for a group workers' compensation program in
accordance with the Maine Workers' Compensation Act. Because the common trust fund is
regulated by the Maine Bureau of Insurance, neither the assefs nor the liabilities of the trust are
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The assets and liabilities of the
trust were approximately $11,921,000 and $9,653,000 at September 28, 2013 and September 29,
2012, respectively.
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EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Employee Health Benefits

Employee health and dental benefits are provided through self-insured plans or commercially
acquired programs. The self-insured medical plan had stop loss coverage that provides
reimbursement for claims other than those paid to System organizations in excess of $770,000 per
individual as of September 28, 2013 and $700,000 per individual as of September 29, 2012.

Other Contingencies

Affiliates of the System are parties in various legal proceedings and potential claims arising in the
ordinary course of their business. In addition, the health care industry as a whole is subject to
numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments. Compliance with these
laws and regulations is subject to government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant
repayments of previously billed and collected revenue, from patient services and exclusion from the
Medicare and Medicaid programs. Such compliance in the health care industry has recently come
under increased governmental scrutiny. Management does not helieve that these matters will have
a material adverse effect on the System's consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Pension and Postretirement Health Care Plans

Cash Balance Plan

Employees of cerfain System affiliates participate in a Defined Benefit, Cash Balance Plan (the
Plan). At the close of every calendar year, participating employers credit the employee's core
account with a contribution based on eligible pay, age, and years of vesting service. The employee
must be at least 21 years of age and have worked 1,000 hours in any calendar year to receive the
contribution for that year. The funding policy of the Plan is to make contributions at least equal to
the minimum amount required under the law.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation — beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain) loss

Net growth in individual accounts

Benefit obligation — end of year

Change in Plan assets:
Fair value of Plan assets — beginning of year
Actual return on Plan assets
Employer contribution
Benefits paid

Net growth in individual accounts
Fair value of Plan assets — end of year

Net amount recognized — accrued liability

Amounts recoghized in other changes in unrestricted net assets:

Prior-service costs
Actuarial loss

Total recognized in other changes in unrestricted net assets

Accumulated benefit obligation

The foliowing table sets forth the Plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012
$ 244,353  § 221,001
13,006 11,743
9,342 9,552
(10,282) (10,512)
(10,436) 11,832
549 737
$ 246,532  § 244,353
$ 191,967 $ 162,213
10,052 25,584
10,400 13,945
(10,282) (10,512)
549 737
$ 202,686 $ 191,967
$ (43,846) § (52,386)
$ 998 § 1270
68,617 80,783
$§ 69616 § 82,053
$ 228,240 $ 224,460
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September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

The System's contribution to the Plan for 2013 and 2012 exceeded amounts required by the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The Plan's Adjusted Funding Target
Attainment Percentage under ERISA was 102% and 106% at September 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively. As a result, the Plan is not subject to ERISA benefit restrictions.

For the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, net pension cost for the Plan
included the following components (dollars in thousands):

2013 012
Setvice cost for benefits earned during the year $ 13,006 $ 11,743
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 9,342 9,552
Expected return on Plan assets (14,057) (14,352)
Amortization of prior service cost 271 277
Amortization of net loss 5,736 3,675
Net periodic pension benefit cost $ 14,298 $ 10,895

The prior service costs and net loss for the Plan that are expected to be amortized from other
changes in unrestricted net assets into net periodic pension benefit cost over the next fiscal year
are $269,836 and $4,576,009, respectively.

The following table sets forth the assumptions used in determining the benefit obligations at
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012;

2013 2012
Weighted-average discount rate 4.65 % 4.00 %
Rate of increase in future compensation 2.50 2,50

The following sets forth the assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years
ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012:

2013 2012
Weighted-average discount rate 4.00 % 4.50 %
Rate of increase in future compensation 2,50 2.50
Expected long-term rate of return on Plan assets 7.50 7.75

The discount rate represents an estimate of the rate at which the pension benefits could be
"effectively” settled. The rate of compensation increase represents a best estimate of long-term pay
increases and reflects an inflation expectation consistent with the discount rate. The long-term rate
of return on Plan assets represents an estimate of the rate of return on current assets, taking into
account the Plan's asset allocation, and also reflects an inflation expectation consistent with the
discount rate.
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September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012
The System expects to make $13,320,000 in contributions to the Plan during 2014. In addition, the

following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, as appropriate, are expected to
be paid during the years ending (dollars in thousands):

Years

2014 $ 17,960
2015 14,726
2018 14,801
2017 16,277
2018 18,067
2019-2022 106,980

The System has adopted a moderately growth-oriented investment policy for the Plan. It is
anticipated that as the Plan matures, the policy should move toward a more conservative posture.
The System's overall strategy is to invest in high-grade securities and other assets with a minimum
risk of market value fluctuation. In general, the System's goal is to maintain the following aliocation
ranges:

Allocation %

Asset Class Minimum Target Maximum
Return Seeking (with 4% liquidity) 50 % 55 % 60 %
Liability Hedging 40 45 50

Defined Contribution Plans

Certain of the System's affiliates sponsor defined contribution plans, which cover substantially all of
their employees, and certain hospital-based physicians meeting the plans' participation
requirements. Expense for the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 was
approximately $8,348,000 and $8,901,242, respectively. The affiliates fund the amount of the
expense annually.

Deferred Compensation Plans

Several of the System's affiliates sponsor deferred compensation plans for eligible employees and
supplemental executive retirement plans (SERP) for certain executives. Assets held by the System
to provide for the payments of contractual liabilities are subject to the claims of the System's
general creditors. The assets are invested in temporary cash investments, institutional mutual funds
and common collective trusts. The investment assets and related liabilites of the deferred
compensation and SERPs were $22,433,000 and $22,107,000, respectively, as of September 28,
2013 and $20,411,000 and $20,094,000, respectively, as of September 29, 2012.
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Postretirement Medical Benefits

Various System organizations provide certain medical benefits for retired employees. Employees of
these various participating organizations may become eligible for these benefits if they reach
normal retirement age while working for such organizations. Early retirement benefits are available
to retirees with at least 15 years of vested service. Employees at participating organizations hired
after January 1, 2005 and the employees of a nonparticipating company are not eligible for retiree
medical benefits. The postretirement medical plan is not funded. The postretirement medical plan
has previously been determined to be actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D.

For the years ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, net periodic postretirement
medical benefit cost consists of the components listed below (dollars in thousands):

2013 2012

Service cost for benefits attributed to service during the year $ 660 $ 770
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 1,724 1,948
Amortization of prior service credit (553) (553)
Amortization of net loss 261 450
Net periodic postretirement medical benefit cost $ 2,092 $ 2615
Amounts recognized in other changes in unrestricted net assets:

Prior-service credit $ (2,279) §$ (2,833)

Actuarial loss 2,501 7,329
Total recognized in other changes in unrestricted net assets § 222 $ 4496

The prior-service credits for the postretirement medical plan that are expected to be amortized from
unrestricted net assets into net periodic postretirement medical benefit cost over the next fiscal year

are $553,497.
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The following table sets forth the compenents of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

shown in the System's consolidated financial statements at September 28, 2013 and September 28,
2012 (dollars in thousands):

201 012

Change in postretirement benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation — beginning of year $ 43,755 $ 43,002

Service cost 660 770

Interest cost 1,724 1,948

Benefits paid (1,712) {1,155)

Actuarial gain (4,565) (1,800)
Accrued postretirement medical benefit obligation $ 39,862 $ 43,755

Approximately $1,440,000 and $1,292,000 of the accrued postretirement cost is included in current
liabilities at September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, respectively.

In determining the accumulated postretirement medical benefit obligation, the System used
discount rates of 4.80% in 2013 and 4.00% in 2012. The Plan assumed annual rates of inflation in
the per capita cost of covered health care benefits. The rates are assumed to decrease gradually
down from 7.25% to 4.50% on a graded scale, becoming fixed in 2020. Increasing the assumed
health care cost frend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated
postretirement medical benefit obligation as of September 28, 2013 by $2,728,454, and the net
periodic postretirement medical benefit cost for the year then ended by $107,971.

The System expects to contribute $1,474,256 to the postretirement benefit plan during 2014.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid during the yvears ending (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending

September

2014 $ 1,474
2015 1,655
2016 1,840
2017 2,053
2018 2,297
2019-2022 13,904
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Pension and Postretirement Plan-Related Adjustments

The components of pension and postretirement plan-related adjustments included in other changes
in unrestricted net assets are as follows:

Cash Balance Postretirement

Plan Medical Benefits Total
For the year ended September 28, 2013
Prior service costs $ 27 $ (553) $ (282
Net actuarial (gain)floss 12,166 4,827 16,993
$ 12,437 $ 4,274 $ 16,711
For the year ended September 29, 2012
Prior service costs $ 277 $ (553) $ (279)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss 3,074 2,250 5,324
$ 3,351 $ 1,697 $ 5048

13. Concentration of Credit Risk

Various System organizations grant credit without collateral to their patients, many of whom are
insured under third-party payor agreements. At September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, the
accounts receivable from patients and third-party payors, net of contractual allowances, were as
follows:

2013 012
Medicare and MaineCare 3% 31 %
Commercial and other insurance 38 35
Patients 31 34

100% 100 %
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System entities routinely invest in short-term repurchase agreements. These repurchase
agreements are collateralized by highly liquid U.S. government securities with a market value
typically exceeding the amount of funds invested in the agreements. Investments in repurchase
agreements are not insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government, however, management
believes the credit risk related to these investments is minimal.

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between
market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the
reporting entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions (uncbservable inputs
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability fo access as of the measurement date.

Levef 2 — Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as gquated prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Leve! 3 — Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

- 46 -




EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

The following tables presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair value for the System's
financial assets and liabilities as of September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012,

Fair Value Measurements at September 28, 2013

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
{Leval 1) {Level 2) [Level 3) Total
Assels:
Temporary cash investments $ 115335 § - % - $ 115335
Pledges receivable and other " 5,773 - 5,773
Marketable equity securities 7,946 - - 7,948
Guarantee investment contracts - 66,633 - 66,633
Foreign issues . 4,237 - 4,237
Other equity investments - - 555 555
Mutual funds
Participant driven (deferred compensation) 14,596 - - 14,596
Balanced portfollo 10,396 - - 10,395
Common collective trusts
Large Cap U.S. equities - 5,866 - 5,866
Short-term bonds - 41,091 - 41,091
Institutional funds
Fixed income funds - 89,624 - 68,624
Multi-asset funds - 91,440 - 91,440
Fixed-income securities — U.S.
government Treasury and agency
obligations 134,872 835 - 136,407
Fixed-income securities — Corporate
obligations - 56,839 - 55,839
Beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts - - 10,852 10,852
Total $ 283,144 $ 341,038 % 11,407 § 635589
Liabilittes:
Deferred compensation $ - $ 22,107 § - 8 22,107
Interest rate swaps - 2,412 - 2,412
Totai $ - % 24519 % - $ 24,619
Cash Balance Pension Plan Assets (Note 12):
tnstitutional mutual funds
Participant driven (deferred compensation) $ 5406 $ - % - % 5,406
Common collective trusts
Long-term bonds - 47,656 - 47,656
Liability-driven invastments - 41,736 - 41,736
Institutional limited funds
Equity securities - 101,296 - 101,296
Hedge fund - - 6,592 6,592
Total $ 5,406 $ 190,688 $ 6,592 $ 202,686
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Fair Value Measurements at September 29, 2012

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Cbservable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2} {Level 3) Total
Assets:
Temporary cash investments 3 09,510 $ - $ - $ 99,510
Pledges receivable and other - 4,648 - 4,648
Marketable equity securities 6,153 - - 6,153
Other equity investments - - 408 498
Mutual funds
Participant driven (deferred compensation} 15,107 - - 15,107
Balanced portfolio 16,550 - - 16,550
Common collective trusts
Large Cap U.S. equities - 24,726 - 24,726
Small Cap U.S. equities - 4,799 - 4,799
International equities - 11,175 - 11,175
Medium-term bonds - 31,246 - 31,246
Short-term bonds - 33,985 - 33,985
Commeodities - 3,384 - 3,384
Fixed-income securities — .S,
government Treasury and agency
obligations 65,133 25 - 65,158
Fixed-income securities - Corporate
obligations - 44,753 - 44,753
Beneficial irderest in
perpetual trusts - - 10,217 10,217
Total 3 202,453 $ 158,741 & 10,715 $ 371,909
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation $ - $ 20,094 $ - $ 20,094
Interest rate swaps - 3,679 - 3,679
Total $ - $ 23,773 3 - $ 23773
Cash Balance Pension Plan Assets (Note 12):
Institutional mutual funds
Participant driven {deferred compensation) $ 5,192 $ - $ - $ 5,192
Commeon collective trusts
Large Cap U.S. equities - 44,666 - 44 666
Small Cap U.S. equities - 7,475 - 7475
Internationat equities - 27,573 - 27,573
Medium-term bonds - 71,554 - 71,554
Long-term bonds - 10,387 - 10,387
Real estate - 7,476 - 7,476
Commodities - 7,692 - 7,692
Inflation protected securities - 3,615 - 3,615
Hedge fund - - 6,337 6,337
Total $ 5,192 $ 180,438 $ 6,337 $ 191,967
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The following is a recenciliation of assets in which significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) were used
in determining fair value (dollars in thousands):

Assets Pension Plan
Beneficial
Interest in Other Equity Hedge
Perpetual Trusts investments Total Fund
Balance at September 24, 2011 $ 8,702 $ 452 $ 9,154 $ -
Contributions 659 - 659 -
Purchases - - - 6,344
Unrealized gains (losses) 856 46 902 (7
Balance at September 29, 2012 10,217 498 10,715 6,337
Unrealized gains 635 57 692 255

Balance at September 28, 2013 $ 10,852 $ 555 $ 11,407 $_ 6592

Unrealized gains or losses on beneficial interest in perpetual trusts in Level 3 are included in the
change in net unrealized gains or losses on investments in permanently restricted net assets,
Unrealized gains or losses on other equity investments in Level 3 are included in change in net
unrealized gains or losses on investments in unrestricted net assets.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value:

Cash Investments — The carrying value of cash investments approximates fair value as mafurities
are less than three months and/or include money market funds that are based on quoted prices and
actively traded.

Pledges Receivable — The present value of cash expected to be collected in future years,
discounted using a risk-free rate applicable to the year in which the pledge is received.

Marketable Equily Securities — The fair values of marketable securities are hased on quoted
market prices.

Guarantee Investment Contracts (GICs) — The estimated fair values of GICs approximate historical
costs.

Fixed-Income Securities — The estimated fair values of debt securities are based on quoted market
prices and/or other market data for the same or comparable instruments and transactions in
establishing the prices.
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Other Equity Investments — The fair values of other equity investments are based on the
investment manager estimate of the net realized value or the value of underlying assets which
include significant Level 3 assets.

Mutual Funds and Institutional Funds — The fair values of mutual funds and institutional funds are
based on quoted market prices.

Common Collective Trusts — The fair values of the common collective {rusts are based on the net
asset value (NAV) of the fund, representing the fair value of the underlying investments which are
generally securities which are traded on an active market,

Hedge Funds -~ The fair values of the Hedge Funds are based on the NAV of the fund that is based
on the investment manager estimate of the net realized value or the value of underiying assets.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts — The fair values of the beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
are based on the underlying assets of the trusts reported by the trustee, which all have readily
determinable fair vaiues. The underlying investments are not readily available to the System and
therefore this is considered to be a Level 3 investment.

Deferrad Compensation Liability — The fair values of the deferred compensation liabilities are
based on the related assets.

Interest Rate Swaps — The System uses inputs other than quoted prices that are chservable to
value the interest rate swaps. The System considers these inputs to be Level 2 inputs in the context
of the fair value hierarchy. These values represent the estimated amounts the System would
receive or pay to terminate agreements, taking into consideration current interest rates and the
current creditworthiness of the counterparty.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the System in estimating the fair value of the
System's financial instruments that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis for
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Estimated Third-party Payor Settlements and Payables
— The carrying value of the System's cash and cash equivalents, receivables, estimated third-party
payor settlements and payables approximates fair value, as maturities are very short-term.

Long-Term Debt and Lines-of-Credit Borrowings — The estimated fair values of the System's long-
term debt are based on current traded values or a discounted cash flows analysis based on the
System's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements,
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Fair value disclosures pursuant to FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 825, Financial
Insfruments, are presented in the following table:

Eair Value Measurements at September 28, 2013

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Carrying Falr ldentical Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount Value (Level 1} [Level 2) iLevel 3)
Agsets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 57,903 $ 57,903 $ 57,903 $ - % -
Short-term investments 14,599 14,599 393 14,208 -
Assets whose use is limited or
restricted 46,781 46,781 45,976 305 -
Noncurrent assets whose use is
limited or restricted 574,209 574,209 236,775 326,027 11,407
Liabitities:
Ling-of-credit borrowings 58 58 - 58 -
Long-term debt 323,554 312,562 - 312,562 -
Deferred compensation 22,107 22,107 - 22,107 -
[nterest rate swaps 2,412 2,412 - 2,412 -
Fair Value Measurements at September 29, 2012
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Chbservable Unobservable
Carmrying Fair Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount Value {Level 1} (Level 2} {Level 3)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,085 $ 72,985 3 72,985 5 - $ -
Short-term investments 7.929 7,929 743 7,186 -
Assets whose use s imited or
resfricted 27,254 27,264 26,549 705 .
Noncurrent assets whose Use is
limited or restricted 336,726 336,726 175,161 150,850 10,715
Liabilities:
Line-of-credit borrowings 11,625 11,625 - 11,625 -
Long-term debt 163,116 169,769 - 169,769 -
Deferred compensation 20,094 20,004 - 20,004 -
Interest rate swaps 3,679 3,679 - 3,679 -
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Investment at Net Asset Values

In accordance with ASU No. 2009-12, Investments in Certain Entities that Calculate Net Asset
Value per Share, the System expanded its disclosures for assets whose fair value is estimated
using the NAVY per share as of September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012. The following tables
set forth a summary of the System's investments with a reported NAV as of September 28, 2013
and September 29, 2012 (dollars in thousands):

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Share
September 28, 2013

Other Redemption
Unfunded  Redemption Redemption Notice
Fair Value Commitment Frequency Restrictions Period
Investments
Large Cap U.S. Equity $ 5866 None Daily None 1 business day
Core Bond Funds 69,624 None Daily None 1 business day
Multi-Asset Funds 91,440 None Dally None 1 business day
Short-term Bonds 41,091 None Monthly Redemption on 1st 5 business days
- day of the month
Total $ 208,021
Pension Plan Investments
Long-term Bonds $ 47,656 None Daily None 1 business day
Liability-driven investments 41,736 None Daily None 1 business day
Multi-Asset Funds 101,296 None Daily None 1 business day
Hedge Funds 6,592 None Quarterly Full redemption pays 65 days with a 30

95% with remaining  day seitlement
5% after completion  period

of the fund's annual

audit. Redemption

fee for redemption

with 12 months of

subscription date.

Redemptions limited

to 20% of NAV an

dealing day.

Total $ 197,280

«52.




EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Fair Value Estimated Using Net Asset Value per Share
September 29, 2012

Other Redemption
Unfunded Redemption Redemption Notice
FairValue Commifment Frequency Restrictions Period
Investments
Large Cap U.S. Equity $ 24,726 None Daily None 1 business day
Small Cap U.S. Equity 4,799 None Daily None 1 business day
International Equity 11,175 None Daily None 1 business day
Medium-term Bonds 31,246 None Daily None 1 business day
Short-term Bonds 33,985 None Monthly Redemption on 1st 5 business days
day of the month
Commodities 3,384 None Daily None 1 business day
Total $ 109,315
Pension Plan Investments

Large Cap U.S. Equity $ 44,666 None Daily None 1 business day
Smali Cap U.S, Equity 7,475 None Daily None 1 business day
International Equity 27,573 None Daily None 1 business day
Medium-term Bonds 71,554 None Daily None 1 business day
Long-term Bonds 10,387 None Daily None 1 business day
Real Estate 7,476 None Daily None 1 business day
Commodities 7,692 None Daily None 1 business day
Inflation Protected Securities 3,615 None Daily None 1 business day
Hedge Funds 6,337 None Quarterly Full redemption pays 65 days with a 30

95% with remaining  day selflement
5% after completion  peried

of the fund's annual

audit. Redemption

fee for redemption

with 12 months of

subscription date.

Redemptions limited

o 20% of NAV on

dealing day.

Total $ 186,775

Large cap U.S. equities — Seeks to provide long-term growth of capital by investing primarily in
large cap equity securities and to achieve above average results over a market cycle. Large cap
(farge capitalization) investments involve stocks of companies generally having a market
capitalization between $10 billion and $200 billion.

Core bond funds — Seeks fo provide excess return over the benchmark through a variety of
diversified strategies including sector rotation, modest interest rate timing, security selection and
tactical use of high yield and emerging market bonds.
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EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

Muflti-asset funds — Seeks favorable returns and offers a convenient way to diversify a portfolio by
combining funds and separate accounts investing in U.S. and non-U.S. stocks, bonds, global
commedities, listed real estate and infrastructure into one fund.

Small cap U.8. equities — Invests in small cap equities to provide maximum long-term appreciation
through investments that are well diversified by industry. Small capitalization investments involve
stocks of companies with smaller levels of market capitalization (generally less than $2 billion).

International equities — Seeks to provide appreciation of capital by investing in international
financial markets of developed economies in Europe and the Pacific Basin and developing
economies in Asia, Latin America, Eastern Europe, the Middle East, and Africa.

Medium-term bonds — Participates in the full spectrum of investment opportunities in primarily U.S.
debt markets. The fund seeks to outperform the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index over a
full market cycle.

Long-term bonds — Seeks favorable returns comparable to its index by combining diversified
advisor styles and strategies over a full market cycle. The fund seeks to outperform the Barclays
U.S. Long Government/Credit Bond index.

Liability-driven investments — Seeks favorable returns comparable to its index by combining
diversified advisor styles and strategies over a full market cycle.

Real estate — Seeks to provide current income and long-term capital growth. The fund invests in a
globally diversified portfolio of commercial real estate securities. It seeks to provide stable return
patterns regardless of inflation with income as a major component of the total returns.

Commodities — Seeks to provide exposure to the commodities markets and provide returns that
outperform the Dow Jones — UBS Commodity Total Return Index. The fund aims to provide
investors with exposure to a diversified portfolio of commodities futures contracts.

Inflation protected securities — Seeks to provide investors with protection from inflation exposure
by investing in U.S. Treasury inflation protected securities of varying maturities.

Hedge funds — Seeks to achieve long-term capital appreciation with low to moderate volatility and
low correlation to global equity markets.

Short-term bonds — Employs a disciplined value-oriented approach, fully invested at all times in the
most attractive sectors to produce high risk-adjusted returns.

uncfional Expenses

The System is a community-based health system dedicated to improving the health of the residents
of its region. In 2013 and 2012, approximately 88% and 87%, respectively, of total expenses were
related to direct heaith care program services, with the balance of expenses for management and
general support services.
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EASTERN MAINE HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012

16. Operating Leases and Other Commitments

Operating [ eases

The System leases certain equipment, warehouse and office space subject to various agreements,
Lease expense charged to operations amounted to approximately $8,504,000 in 2013 and
$8,192,000 in 2012.

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under operating leases at
September 28, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending

September

2014 $ 6818
2015 4135
2016 3,131
2017 1,897
2018 1,253
Thereafter 3,917

$ 21,251

The System leases warehouse and office space from Penobscot Logistics Solutions, LLC, a related
party. The lease requires annual payments of $435,000 through 2023.

Other Commitments

In 2006, EMMC entered into a long-term agreement with its clinical systems vendor for remote
hosting services. This agreement was revised and extended in 2009 for ten years. The agreement
required payments of $4,386,000 in 2013 and 2012, The following is a schedule by year of the
payments under the remote hosting agreement at September 28, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

September

2014 $ 4,386
2015 4,386
2016 4,386
2017 4,386
2018 4,385
Thereafter 2,193

The amount of the payment is subject to performance standards and could be decreased in certain
circumstances. In addition, EMMC has a perpetual license agreement with its clinical systems
vendors. The agreement requires annual payments of $2,556,000 through 2019. The payments
provide for the maintenance and support for the existing licensed software.
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